# **AGREEMENT** between THE CALVERT EDUCATION ASSOCIATION and THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF CALVERT COUNTY July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2028

# Contents

Article I Recognition	2
Addendum to Article 1 Career Ladder Level 3 Teacher Eligibility = CLTE	3
Article 2 School Board Authority	4
Article 3 Grievance and Arbitration Procedures	5
Article 4 Association Rights	7
Article 5 Employment and Assignment	10
Article 6 Teaching Hours and Working Conditions	11
Article 7 Employee Facilities	
Article 8 Teacher Rights	16
Article 9 Teacher Evaluation	19
Article 10 Non-Promotional Transfers	22
Article 11 School Based Labor Management Meetings	25
Article 12 Promotions	26
Article 13 Sick Leave	27
Article 14 Parental Leave	30
Article 15 Sabbatical Leave	31
Article 16 Temporary Leaves of Absence	32
Article 17 Extended Leaves of Absence	35
Article 18 Academic Freedom	36
Article 19 Maintenance of Classroom Control and Discipline	37
Article 20 Payroll Deductions	38
Article 21 Compensation	39
Article 22 Fringe Benefits	43
Article 23 General Provisions	52
Article 24 Duration	53
Article 25 Salary	54
Article 26 Career Ladder	57

# **Article 1 Recognition**

- 1.1 The Board of Education of Calvert County, hereinafter referred to as Calvert County Public Schools or "CCPS" or "employer", recognizes the Calvert Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association", as the sole and exclusive negotiating agent for all non-supervisory certificated employees with regard to salaries, wages, hours, and other working conditions.
- 1.2 Unless otherwise indicated, the term "teachers" when used hereinafter in this Agreement, shall refer to all professional employees, including, but not limited to, teachers holding a conditional teaching certificate, second class teaching certificate, standard professional certificate, advanced professional certificate, national certificate and retire/rehire teachers, represented by the Association in the negotiating unit. The list of professional employees covered by this agreement is attached as an addendum. The addendum will be updated by CCPS as positions are added, deleted, or revised and upon request sent to the Association.
- 1.3 Classroom Teaching Positions, Non-Classroom Positions, Regional Programming Teacher Positions, and Related Service Provider Positions are identified in Addendum 1 to Article 1. Career Ladder Teachers eligible for Level 3 are identified in the Addendum noted in 1.2 with a Yes under CLTE.

# Addendum to Article 1 Career Ladder Level 3 Teacher Eligibility = CLTE

Classroom Teaching Positions	CLTE	Non-Classroom Positions	CLTE
Academy of Health Professions	Yes	Activities Director	No
<u>Art</u>	Yes	Assistive Technology Specialist	No_
Auto Service Technician	Yes	Autism Specialist	No_
Business	Yes	Autism Spectrum Facilitator	No
Carpentry	Yes	Behavior Specialist	No
Carpentry/Home Improvement	Yes	Dean	No
CISCO Networking	Yes	Diagnostic Prescriptive Teacher	No
Computer Science - High School	Yes	Early Childhood Learning Specialist	No
Computer Science - Middle School	Yes	ESOL Specialist	No
Core Lead	Yes	Gifted and Talented Teacher Specialist	No
Cosmetology	Yes		No
Culinary Arts	Yes	Inclusive Education Facilitator	No
Curriculum for Agriculture Sciences (CASE)	Yes	Learning Specialist	No
Dance	Yes	Librarian - Secondary	No
Drama	Yes	Medicaid/SSIS/Data Management	No
Early Childhood	Yes	Mental Health Coordinator	No
Electricity	Yes		No
Elementary	Yes		No
English	Yes		No
English Language Arts	Yes	Special Education Instruction & Compliance Teacher Specialist	No
Family/Consumer Science	Yes	Special Education Math Specialist	No
Gateway to Technology	Yes		No
Graphic Arts	Yes		No
Health	Yes		Yes
HVAC	Yes		Yes
Interactive Media	Yes		No
Librarian - Elementary	Yes		No
Mathematics	Yes		No
Music	Yes		No
Music/Band	Yes		CLTE
Music/Chorus	Yes		Yes
Music/Strings	Yes		Yes
Naval Science Instructor	Yes		Yes
Physical Education	Yes		No
Prekindergarten – Special Education	Yes		Yes
Project Lead the Way (PTLW)			Yes
PTLW - Biomedical	Yes		Yes
PTLW - Engineering	Yes		Yes
Science	Yes		Yes
Senior Naval Science Instructor (SNSI)	Yes		Yes
Social Studies	Yes		Yes
South States	105	Special Education - Intensive Structured Learning Environment	
Special Education	Yes		Yes
Technology Education	Yes	<u> </u>	Yes
Welding	Yes		Yes
World Language	Yes		Yes
Related Service Provider Positions			CLTE
Audiologist			No
Occupational Therapist			No
		No	
Speech Language Pathologist		No	
School Psychologist			No
		No	

# **Article 2 School Board Authority**

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to the provisions of the Public School Laws of Maryland, it shall be the exclusive function of the Board of Education and the Superintendent of Schools to determine the mission of the county public education system and to operate the affairs and direct the personnel of the system in all aspects, including but not limited to the standard of service to be offered; the efficiency of administration; the methods, means and personnel by which such operations are to be conducted, the right to discipline, and to take whatever action and issue rules, policies, procedures and regulations necessary to carry out the mission of the county public education system for which they are responsible and which is entrusted to them.

# **Article 3 Grievance and Arbitration Procedures**

# **SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS**

A "grievant" shall mean a teacher or group of teachers or the Association filing a grievance.

A "grievance" shall mean a written statement submitted under the cover of a jointly approved form by a grievant that a controversy, dispute or disagreement of any kind or character exists arising out of or in any way involving interpretation or application of the terms of this Agreement.

"Days" shall mean working days in accordance with the CCPS calendar for 12-month employees.

# **SECTION 2. PROCEDURE AND STEPS**

Within twenty (20) days following occurrence or first knowledge of the act or condition which is the basis of the complaint, the grievant may file a grievance with the school principal or his/her immediate supervisor, or such grievance shall be deemed to be waived. Grievances shall not be amended during the grievance process without mutual consent of both parties.

#### Step 1.

The school principal and/or his/her designated representatives, or the immediate supervisor and/or his/her designated representatives shall have twenty (20) days to give a written decision after receipt of the grievance.

# Step 2.

If the grievance is not settled in Step 1, the grievant may appeal it to Step 2 by written notice to the Superintendent of Schools within ten (10) days after the employer's Step 1 answer. The Superintendent of Schools and/or his/her designated representatives shall have ten (10) days to give a written decision after receipt of the grievance. Failure of the appropriate administrator to respond within the time limitations established in this Section shall enable the grievant to proceed to the next step.

# **Arbitration Procedure**

Any grievance concerning the alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement that has been properly processed through Steps 1 and 2 of the grievance procedure as set forth above and has not been settled or waived, may be appealed to arbitration by the Association by serving written notice on Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) within twenty (20) days after the Superintendent's answer at Step 2 of the said grievance procedure. If the Association fails to serve such notice of its intention to arbitrate within this time limitation, it shall be deemed to have waived the arbitration and the grievance shall be considered settled.

# **Other Provisions**

#### 1. Selection of Arbitrator

If the Association and CCPS are unable to agree upon the selection of an arbitrator within seven (7) days after the Association's notice of appeal to arbitration, either party (upon written notice to the other party)

shall request the American Arbitration Association to furnish a list of not less than nine (9) arbitrators, one of whom shall be designated by the parties as the arbitrator of the grievance. If either party fails to request the list from the American Arbitration Association within a forty (40) day time period from the date the Association informs CCPS of its intent to appeal to arbitration, their right to arbitration shall be deemed waived. Selection shall be made by the parties alternately striking any name from the list until only one name remains. The final name remaining who is available to serve shall be the arbitrator of the grievance.

#### 2. Jurisdiction of Arbitration

The jurisdiction and authority of the arbitrator of the grievance and his/her opinion and award shall be confined to the provision or provisions of this Agreement as issued between the Association and CCPS. He/she shall have no authority to add to, alter, amend or modify any provision of this Agreement. The arbitrator's authority shall include the authority initially to determine any issue raised regarding this jurisdiction, subject only to judicial stay or intervention. The arbitrator shall not hear or decide more than one grievance without the mutual consent of CCPS and the Association. The award in writing of the arbitrator, except if set aside by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall be final and binding on the aggrieved employee or employees, the Association and CCPS.

# 3. Arbitration Expenses

The Association and CCPS shall each bear its own expenses in these arbitration proceedings, except that they shall share equally the fee and other expenses of the arbitrator in connection with the grievance submitted to him/her.

#### 4. Release Time

Release time shall be provided for all participants in arbitration hearings, including the grievant, association representatives, and a reasonable number of witnesses. The intent of this item is to ensure that release time is kept to the minimum amount necessary.

In the event that the grievance is filed by the Association, the Association will provide CCPS with the information sufficient to investigate the alleged violation including where necessary and appropriate, names and places.

#### SECTION 3. ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATION

All employees shall have the right to Association representation at each step of the grievance procedure.

Formal grievances utilizing this procedure may only be submitted with the consent of the Association. No grievance may be submitted to arbitration without the consent of, and representation by the Association.

# **SECTION 4. NO REPRISALS**

No reprisals shall be invoked against any employee for processing a grievance or participating in any way in the grievance procedure.

# **Article 4 Association Rights**

- 4.1 The Association will have the right to use school facilities for non-commercial purposes, as approved in advance by the principal/director. The Association shall bear the cost of overtime payment to the building service worker/s if such building service is necessary.
- 4.2 There will be one (1) bulletin board or bulletin board area reserved for the Association in each school, with location to be approved by the principal, for the purpose of displaying its official notices, circulars, and other such materials. Reasonable efforts will be made to ensure information on the board or in the area is up-to-date.
- 4.3 The Association will have the right to place official rosters, circulars, and other materials in teachers' mailboxes and in the distribution boxes in the central office, so long as it does not interfere with the distribution of the materials of the school system. The Association shall have the right to send official Association messages to teachers' electronic mailboxes. All Association materials distributed in the school system shall be identified by the Association and approved by the Association president or his/her designee before distribution. The Association will have the right to a mailbox at the offices of Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS).
- 4.4 CCPS shall provide the Association with an electronic file listing all teachers in the system on or before September 15. This list shall include name, position, home address, personal home/cell phone numbers (if available), work email address, salary, hire date, job location, full-time equivalency, and certification. Name and schools of all teachers newly employed will be provided to the Association promptly upon receipt of the signed teacher's contract. Such information is not to be used for commercial purposes. This list shall be provided quarterly to the Association on or about the last day of January, April, July, and October.
- 4.5 CCPS will notify the Association regarding the scheduled processing of new or returning employees ten (10) days prior or as soon as practicable. The Association shall be entitled to one-to-one and/or small group meetings with employees during or immediately following their intake session. Non-participation of the Association shall in no way delay an employee's start date.
- 4.6 Duly authorized representatives of the Association shall be permitted to meet with teachers during their duty-free lunch and before or after the duty day in their classrooms, the staff lounge, or other areas designated by the principal.
- 4.7 Association officers and/or representatives shall be permitted to draw upon a leave pool of fifty (50) full days paid by the Association for use in Association business. Any additional leave will require the approval of the Superintendent in advance and satisfactory arrangements for substitutes. Any necessary substitute expense shall be borne by the Association. The use of the aforementioned leave shall require the approval of an officer of the Association.
  - Professional leave will be used for joint CEA/CCPS committees and CCPS sponsored committees requiring CEA participation. Such leave will be provided by CCPS.

4.8 CCPS will distribute a CEA information packet, at the time of hiring that provides information about CEA membership.

# A. Membership Dues

- 1. For employees who elect to join the Association, CCPS agrees to deduct from teachers' salaries membership dues as follows: The Association will deliver to CCPS by September 15 forms signed by the teachers authorizing CCPS to deduct from their salary their professional dues in the Calvert Education Association, the Maryland State Education Association and National Education Association. The deductions shall be made in nineteen (19) equal installments, beginning with the salary check issued on or about September 30 of each year. This authorization shall be valid as long as such signators are employed in the Calvert County Public Schools, unless they countermand it in writing to the Association between August 15 and September 15 of any year. The Association shall notify the CCPS Finance Department no later than September 20 in writing of any members that have served notice to halt deduction of their dues. In case of resignation or retirement within a school year, the balance due that year will be deducted from their final salary check. CCPS will not be responsible for payment of union dues when an employee's final pay is not sufficient to cover the remaining balance due.
- 2. The Association will certify to CCPS in writing the current rate of membership dues. The Association will give CCPS fifteen (15) days written notice prior to the effective date of any change in the rate of dues.
- 3. No later than November 1 of each year, CCPS will provide the Association with a list of those teachers from whom dues were deducted on the October payroll.
- 4. CCPS agrees to transmit such monies promptly to the Association.
- 5. CCPS shall be indemnified and saved harmless by the Association against any and all claims, demands, suits, or any other forms of liability that shall rise out of or by reason of action taken or not taken by CCPS for the purposes of complying with any of the provisions of this section, or in reliance of any list, notice or assignment furnished under any such provisions.
- 4.9 The rights and/or privileges granted to the Association in this Article will not be granted to any other teachers' negotiating agent during the terms of this Agreement.
- 4.10 In any building site where a site-based decision committee or other committees including advisory committee, faculty advisory committee, school improvement team, or accreditation committee exist, an Association member(s) shall be given an opportunity to serve on the committee(s).
- 4.11 The Superintendent shall provide opportunities as appropriate for Association participation on curricular and administrative committees as they are formed.

- 4.12 CCPS agrees to the Association having the right to a full-time released President with the Association paying the salary and benefit costs. The President, upon return to CCPS, is guaranteed the position they occupied prior to their leave if available or another position in their area of certification.
- 4.13 The Association shall have the opportunity to meet regularly with the Superintendent to discuss issues of mutual interest. The parties agree to make their best efforts to meet monthly.
- 4.14 The Association will have the right to participate in the CCPS Calendar Committee or any similarly situated Committee on the school calendar and will be given the opportunity to make school calendar recommendations during its public review period.
- 4.15 In the event the MSEA Fall Conference falls on a non-student day, teachers will receive approved professional leave to attend the Maryland State Education Association (MSEA) Fall Conference provided they submit proof of conference attendance to their supervisor upon their return.
  - In the event the MSEA Fall Conference falls on a student day, the CEA President will submit to the Superintendent or designee, in advance, a list of up to fifteen (15) teachers requesting professional leave to attend the Maryland State Education Association (MSEA) Fall Conference. Teachers approved to attend will submit proof of conference attendance to their supervisor upon their return.
- 4.16 During the orientation for new teachers, CEA will be provided up to fifteen (15) minutes on the meeting agenda each day to present CEA's purposes and activities. Additionally, CEA will be permitted to have an exhibit table and space for the "New Teacher Store" during both orientation days for new teachers. The Supervisor of Teacher Induction and the Association President will meet prior to orientation to discuss the logistics.

# **Article 5 Employment and Assignment**

- All teachers will be given written notice of their salary for the forthcoming school year not later than August 15 or within two (2) weeks following budget approval by the fiscal authorities, whichever is later.
- 5.2 The principal will notify teachers in writing or through email of their projected class and course assignment by the end of the school year. All teachers reporting on and after June 1 of any calendar year will be assigned for the ensuing school year and notified as soon as feasible. In the event that changes in class and/or course assignments are made after the end of the school year, all teachers affected will be notified promptly via phone call and through email. When a teacher is notified after the last day of school that the teacher is required to relocate to another classroom due to a reassignment within a school building by a principal during a non-duty day shall result in compensation up to seven (7) hours at the teacher workshop rate of pay.
- 5.3 In the best interest of teaching and learning, reasonable effort shall be made to assign teachers to subjects or grades or other classes within the scope of their teaching certificates or their major or minor fields of study. If teachers holding professional certificates are assigned to subjects or grades or other classes outside the scope of their teaching certificate or their major or minor fields of study, they shall be notified promptly through email following the decision, stating the reason(s) for the assignment.
- In arranging schedules for teachers who are assigned to more than one (1) school, an effort will be made to limit the amount of inter-school travel. Teachers shall be notified of any change in their schedules as soon as practicable. Reasonable effort will be made to provide sufficient time for travel, arrival, and departure.
- 5.5 A. A notice of initial vacancies for summer school, mentor program, extended school year and other county-wide programs as authorized by the Superintendent shall be posted on Calvertnet at least two (2) weeks before these vacancies are filled. When a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet, an email notice shall be sent to all staff. The Association shall receive an email notice when a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet.
  - B. In assigning teachers to the vacancies in item 5.5A, teachers will have the opportunity to participate in a competitive interview process for known vacancies and with all other factors substantially equal such as satisfactory summative evaluations, educational level, specific training and experience related to the vacancy, and certification including subject field and grade level, preference will be given to the teacher with the greatest seniority in Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS).
  - C. A vacancy, as specified in item 5.5A, shall be defined as an opening that has occurred as a result of a teacher resigning from a position, a documented inadequate performance, or a new position.

# **Article 6 Teaching Hours and Working Conditions**

- All teachers hired before July 1, 2024, will be assigned appropriate starting and dismissal times, provided that the total regular workday for teachers will be no longer than seven and one-half (7 1/2) consecutive hours, including the duty-free lunch period, except in the case of emergency. All teachers and related service providers new to CCPS beginning work after June 30, 2024, will have an 8-hour workday, including the duty-free lunch period, until they achieve tenure.
- 6.2 The acceptance of school-related responsibilities beyond the workday shall be voluntary except (a) in the case of an emergency; (b) one (1) day each month may be set aside for a general faculty meeting and/or professional development activity which shall not exceed one (1) hour beyond the work day except in the case of an emergency; (c) in special circumstances, an additional faculty meeting may be scheduled, provided that the teachers affected shall receive one (1) week notice as to the date and purpose of the meeting (meetings scheduled pursuant to this sub-section shall not exceed one (1) hour in duration beyond the regular workday); (d) except in case of an emergency, teachers will not be required to stay beyond the duty day for meetings on Fridays, the day before a holiday, days designated for report card preparation, or on the day before a non-teacher work day.
- 6.3 The work year of teachers regularly employed on the ten (10) month basis and covered by the basic salary schedule shall be determined by the official school calendar and shall not exceed 190 teacher days. Teachers who are newly employed in Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) shall work 192 teacher days. Elementary school counselors shall be required to work a maximum of 191 days per year. Middle school counselors shall be required to work a maximum of 195 days per year. High school counselors shall be required to work a maximum of 205 days per year. Eleven (11) month teachers shall be required to work a maximum of 245 days per year. Twelve (12) month teachers shall be required to work a maximum of 245 days per year.
- 6.4 Each teacher shall be assigned a duty-free lunch period of not less than thirty minutes. Travel time with students to and from the lunch room will not be included in this thirty-minute period. Teachers shall have the right to leave the building during this time provided they notify the office when leaving and upon returning.
- 6.5 Under no circumstance will a teacher be required to transport students.
- 6.6 A. Each elementary teacher shall have a daily forty-five (45) minute, uninterrupted period for preparation and planning during the student day. On abbreviated days such as early dismissal or late arrival, teacher planning time will occur; however, it will be less than forty-five (45) minutes.
  - B. Each secondary teacher shall be scheduled one (1) period or its equivalent per day during the student day for preparation and planning. Any teacher seeking release from such preparation period may so inform his/her principal. On abbreviated days such as early dismissal or late arrival, teacher planning time will occur; however, it will be less than one (1) standard period.
  - C. Every effort will be made to provide a planning period to affected teachers on days when teachers participate in a CCPS curriculum required field trip or professional development.

- D. The principal or designee shall have the option of meeting with a teacher(s) for twenty (20) minutes during an assigned planning period one (1) time per month with at least one (1) day of notice.
- E. The principal or designee shall have the option of meeting with a teacher for twenty minutes during an assigned planning period one (1) additional time per month during the months of their SLO conference (or equivalent evaluative growth measure if the current SLO process is modified by MSDE) for a maximum of three (3) times per year.
- 6.7 CCPS will make every effort to provide a substitute in the event that a teacher is absent for more than two consecutive hours.
- 6.8 At the beginning of each school year, teachers will be surveyed to identify those who would like to substitute during their planning in the event a substitute cannot be secured.
- 6.9 Teachers shall not be required to serve as substitutes during their planning period except when a substitute or teacher volunteer cannot be secured.
- 6.10 Classroom teachers shall not be required to secure substitutes; however, they must report leave as per CCPS procedures.
- 6.11 Whenever schools open two hours late due to inclement weather, teachers will arrive two hours after the regularly scheduled start time of their contractual workday. Whenever schools dismiss two hours early due to inclement weather, teachers will leave two hours before the regularly scheduled end time of their contractual workday.
- 6.12 Teachers shall not be required to report to school on days when schools are closed due to inclement weather or other "officially declared" emergencies. In the event an individual school is closed on a student day and the school system remains open, teachers at the closed school(s) will be expected to report to an alternate work site or work remotely as designated by the principal or designee.
- 6.13 Classroom teachers shall not be required to collect money from students for non-educational purposes.
- 6.14 Teachers will not be asked to search for bombs or other explosives.
- 6.15 Teaching areas will be adequately lighted, ventilated, and heated. CCPS shall comply with applicable state and federal regulations with regard to safe and healthy working conditions. When the building administrator in consultation with the teacher/s and a qualified professional judges a room or an area to be an immediate health or safety hazard, the room or area will be closed until the hazard has been corrected.
- 6.16 Upon request, a teacher must be provided with the proper form to request air quality testing in his/her building. The complete report of any air quality testing shall be sent to the initiate and to the Association. The decision to test air quality will be at the discretion of the Director of School Facilities or designee.

- 6.17 CCPS and the Association recognize and value the importance of parent teacher association events and other school-related activities, which they acknowledge foster better parent-teacher relationships and impact student achievement.
- 6.18 The parties recognize the importance of lesson planning adjusted to the varying needs of students; therefore, there shall be no system-wide prescribed format for lesson plans. Lesson planning is a requirement of all teachers in Calvert County Public Schools. Written lesson plans, including those in digital format, will reflect evidence of planning and be aligned with Calvert County Public Schools curricula.

Any teacher who uses short-term leave must provide lesson plans, a class roster, and a daily schedule for the substitute teacher to follow. In the event of an unanticipated absence, teachers will have on file lesson plans, class rosters, daily schedules, and evacuation/drill procedures for substitutes to implement.

6.19 On the two (2) hour early dismissal and/or late arrival days for students designated as teacher work time on the Board approved School System Calendar, before student arrival or after student dismissal is complete, teachers may opt to work the beginning or the remainder of the day off-site, in an environment that is conducive to work, with notification to their immediate supervisor unless otherwise specified in this article.

There will be a total of six (6) two (2) hour early dismissal or late arrival days for students designated as teacher work time, one (1) day of which shall be designated as SLO work time for teachers.

If any of the above work times is scheduled on a day when schools are delayed or closed due to inclement weather/emergency, every effort will be made to reschedule the two (2) hour block.

- 6.20 During the August pre-service days, three and a quarter (3.25) designated consecutive hours which will occur during the last three contractual hours and 15 minutes of the workday will be provided for teachers to complete the system-required online compliance training. Teachers may opt to work the designated time off-site in an environment that is conducive to work, with notification to their immediate supervisor. The online compliance training will be available for the teacher bargaining unit members by August 1.
- 6.21 Reasonable efforts will be made to provide teaching areas with appropriate technology and software to support the instruction of students. CCPS will provide ongoing technical support and training as necessary.
- 6.22 During the August pre-service days, the equivalent of seven (7) designated hours will be provided for teachers to complete classroom preparation for the upcoming school year. Two three and one-half (3 ½) hour blocks will be provided for classroom preparation time.
- 6.23 Secondary principals shall make a good faith effort to assign teachers in a manner that minimizes the number of class preparations to the extent possible and allows for a permanent room assignment. Elementary principals shall make a good faith effort to create a school schedule that provides for transition time to and from related arts.

- 6.24 Calvert County Public Schools will take reasonable steps to provide a safe working environment and shall collaborate with CEA in an effort to address safety concerns that are brought to its attention.
- 6.25 Teachers who have a child graduating from a CCPS high school shall be charged no more than five (5) hours of leave on the day of graduation.

# **Article 7 Employee Facilities**

As budget and facilities permit, Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) shall make available to each school the following:

- 7.1 A desk, chair, file cabinet, and a computer shall be provided for each teacher, including teachers who float. Reasonable efforts will be made to continue to provide to teachers interactive technology that enhances instructional practice. Related service providers shall be supplied a laptop computer.
- 7.2 Private telephone facilities shall be made available to teachers for their reasonable use.
- 7.3 Adequate storage space in each classroom, where appropriate.
- 7.4 An appropriately furnished room to be reserved for the use of teachers as a faculty room. Furnishings will include dining tables and chairs.
- 7.5 Well-lighted and clean teacher restrooms reserved for their use.
- 7.6 A teacher work area containing equipment and supplies to aid in the preparation of instructional materials.
- 7.7 Vending machines shall be installed in the school's faculty lounge as approved by the principal, provided that said approval will not be denied without cause.
- 7.8 At least one computer with appropriate software and Internet connection in each classroom, as well as access to a printer, for exclusive use of teachers.
- 7.9 Lockable storage for teacher use shall be provided.

# **Article 8 Teacher Rights**

- 8.1 No tenured teacher will be disciplined or reduced in rank without just cause.
- 8.2 The personal life of a teacher shall be the concern of and warrant the attention of Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) only as it may directly prevent the teacher from properly performing their assigned functions during the duty hours.
- 8.3 Subject to Paragraph 2 above, the participation or non-participation in religious, political, or teacher association activities of a teacher conducted outside duty hours and off school property shall not be grounds for disciplinary action with respect to his/her professional employment.
- When a tenured teacher is accused of misconduct in office, the Administrator or direct supervisor will conduct an initial investigation of the reported incident. The teacher has the right to request that an Association representative and/or legal counsel be present at any subsequent meeting with the Administration that he/she has been advised will result in a recommendation of suspension or discharge. If a teacher exercises his/her right for representation at this step, the teacher bears the sole responsibility of notifying the Association representative and/or legal counsel. Following the completion of an investigation and prior to any disciplinary meeting, CCPS will provide the teacher with the nature of allegations against the teacher as permitted by law. The Association representative and/or legal counsel will make himself/herself available to meet within two (2) working days from the time the teacher was advised of the need to meet for the above reasons. In the event the Association representative and/or legal counsel fails to appear at the scheduled date and time, the meeting shall proceed without him/her.

It is expressly understood and agreed that this provision is not intended to and does not apply to any or all meetings between teachers and supervisory or administrative staff which are related to or are part of the evaluation of employee competence or any other investigation or consideration by the administration of teacher competence.

It is further expressly agreed and understood that this provision is also not intended to apply to situations involving aggravated teacher misconduct where the best interests of the school system require immediate paid suspension / administrative leave of the teacher. The teacher involved in immediate paid suspension / administrative leave has the right to request that an Association representative and/or legal counsel be present in all subsequent meetings regarding the immediate paid suspension / administrative leave. The teacher will be provided written notice of the nature of the allegations resulting in their immediate paid suspension/administrative leave no later than the next available workday following their removal.

- 8.5 Following receipt of a written reprimand for misconduct, a teacher may request a meeting with his/her administrator and/or supervisor and Association representative and/or legal counsel; the purpose of which is to clarify expectations for change pursuant to the written reprimand.
- 8.6 Upon notification of a recommendation for suspension or termination, a teacher may request a hearing before either an arbitrator or the Board of Education as provided in the Education Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, Section 6-202. If the teacher remains on leave and requests a

hearing, the teacher shall continue to be paid at a rate of 70% of their pay until the arbitrator or the Board renders a decision or until 80 duty days after the hearing request, whichever comes first. If a teacher's case is upheld, salary lost during the suspension shall be paid to that teacher.

- 8.7 In any reduction in the bargaining unit as the result of budgetary action or curriculum and/or administrative reorganization in the following order:
  - A. No tenured teacher shall be laid-off until all certificated non-tenured teachers in their field(s) of certification and tenured teachers on second class have been laid off.
  - B. No certificated non-tenured teacher shall be laid-off until all conditional certificated teachers in their field(s) of certification have been laid off.
  - C. Tenured teachers shall be laid off based on:
    - 1. certification, including subject field and grade level,
    - 2. less than effective overall evaluation, and
    - 3. seniority (length of service in the Calvert County School System).
  - D. Tenured teachers on lay-off (for a maximum period of two years) shall be recalled when vacancies become available based on:
    - 1. certification, including subject field and grade level,
    - 2. seniority
    - 3. less than effective overall evaluation.
- 8.8 The Association will be notified in writing of any reduction in the bargaining unit two weeks prior to official announcement.
- 8.9 CCPS and the Association shall comply with the provisions of the Public School Laws of Maryland, which renders unlawful discrimination with regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, ancestry or national origin, familial status, marital status, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, or genetic information.
- 8.10 When possible, complaints from parents and other community sources shall be dealt with at the lowest organizational level.
  - A. When any complaint regarding an employee is made to a supervisor, principal, or other administrator, such complaint will be promptly investigated and addressed at the lowest administrative level and called to the attention of the employee unless the complaint is referred to the Department of Social Services or an appropriate law enforcement agency, in which instance the Department of Social Services and/or the appropriate law enforcement agency would initiate an investigation prior to CCPS conducting its own investigation.
  - B. The employee will be given the opportunity to respond to and/or rebut such complaint and shall have the right to be represented by the Association and counsel at any meeting or conference between the teacher and supervisor regarding such complaint. A complaint is a negative comment or inquiry regarding behavior of an employee by a person not in the employ of the school system, or not acting in the role of employee if employed by Calvert County Public Schools. The complaint may be oral or written.
  - C. Prior to the start of an investigation, the employee will be informed of the nature of the complaint. Upon request, the employee will be provided written notification of known allegations against him/her.

- 8.11 Each teacher, upon request, shall be given a physical copy of the Calvert County Public Schools Code of Student Conduct no later than September 15 of each school year.
- 8.12 In the event it is found that a teacher is incorrectly assigned to a scale and/or step, the employee will be held harmless from any overpayment that may have occurred, the employee's placement on step and/or scale will be adjusted accordingly, and the employee's future pays will be based on the correct scale and/or step. Any employee whose compensation is currently frozen due to past practice for correcting scale and/or step placement errors will be governed by the placement at the time the error was discovered.

# **Article 9 Teacher Evaluation**

- 9.1 All observations will be conducted openly and with full knowledge of the teacher. A rated observation will be followed by a conference within five (5) workdays of the observation, and the teacher will have access to the rating form on the observation/evaluation electronic platform at or before the conference. The rating form shall be printed upon the teacher's request. Complete guidelines for the observation and evaluation of teachers and annual Calvert County Public Schools Teacher Evaluation Process timeline can be found in the Human Resources site on Office 365.
- 9.2 No teacher shall be observed/evaluated while teaching the class of an absent teacher.
- 9.3 Classroom observations of teachers who are teaching a class outside their area of certification may be both formal and informal but will not be used as the primary basis for that teacher's final evaluation unless the majority of that assignment is outside his/her area of certification.
- 9.4 Non-tenured teachers will:
  - A. be observed at least four (4) times each year
  - B. have at least two (2) formal conferences per year
  - C. have intermediate and/or summative professional practice conferences
  - D. be assigned a mentor
- 9.5 Teachers shall complete either Student Learning Objectives (SLOs) or Growth Goals annually. Both parties recognize the importance of ongoing student data analysis to inform instruction and practice and, therefore, agree that SLO and Growth Goals should be submitted for approval throughout the year and no later than March 1.

#### 9.6 Evaluation

- A. Formal evaluation shall be based exclusively on the criteria in the evaluative instrument. The summative professional practice will reflect the teacher's performance for the entire observation year and will include comments reflecting strengths where appropriate, the rationale for an ineffective or developing/needs improvement rating, and specific recommendations for improvement. Specific recommendations must be provided in writing.
- B. Once an evaluation instrument is presented, discussed with the teacher, and signed by both the teacher and evaluator, no additional changes will be made to this document.
- C. All evaluative criteria and standards must be in place for the teacher evaluation/observation process, and teachers must be advised of all evaluative criteria and standards to be used prior to their overall evaluation conference, unless there are legislative and/or regulatory changes.
- D. Following an observation or evaluation conference, the teacher shall have the right to a meeting to discuss the recommendations for improvement with the principal and/or supervisor. The teacher must request the meeting within seven (7) workdays and the

meeting must be held within five (5) workdays of the request. The teacher will have the right to have Association representation present during this meeting.

- 9.7 Teachers will be provided, upon request, a hardcopy of any document related to the formal observation process.
- 9.8 Teachers shall sign any document related to the formal observation process within twelve (12) workdays of the conference.
- 9.9 Written comments may be made by the rater and/or by the teacher. Provision will be made for the teacher's signature to indicate that he/she has seen the rating. The teacher will acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to review the observation, evaluation report(s), or related materials by typing his or her signature and selecting submit, with the express understanding that said signature neither indicates agreement nor disagreement with the contents.
- 9.10 Teachers will have access to their personnel file through the Human Resources electronic platform and the right, upon written notice on the appropriate form, to review materials in their personnel file. A representative of Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) shall be present at the review to ensure protection of records. The teacher may be accompanied by an Association representative. At the teacher's expense, a copy of materials in his/her personnel file shall be provided.
- 9.11 Material derogatory to a teacher's conduct, service, character or personality will be placed in his/her personnel file only if justified and the teacher has had an opportunity to review the material and to attach a response. The teacher will acknowledge that he/she has had the opportunity to review such material by affixing his/her signature or initials to the copy to be filed, with the express understanding that such initialing neither indicates agreement nor disagreement with the contents thereof.
- 9.12 CCPS may exclude from a review by the teacher: college placement records, recommendations secured at the time of employment, and confidential material which the employer may exclude from review pursuant to Maryland law or State Board of Education policy.

#### 9.13 Performance

- A. Walk-throughs, informal classroom visits, non-rated observations, and rated observations by administrators will be used in order to promote continuous improvement. Teachers will be notified as soon as possible of areas of concern in performance and will be offered the opportunity for improvement.
- B. If a teacher receives a rating of "ineffective" on the summative professional practice and/or student growth portion of the overall rating, the teacher's immediate supervisor(s) shall meet with the teacher to develop an Intensive Development Plan for improvement and to ensure subsequent counseling and assistance.

As part of a plan of assistance, a teacher with an Intensive Development Plan or Second Class status will be assigned a teacher mentor.

In developing the Intensive Development Plan, the employee shall have the right to consult with a CEA representative prior to the approval of the Intensive Development Plan, in the timeframe specified by the posted CCPS schedule for plan development.

The Intensive Development Plan shall include the following:

- 1. Goals for Improvement Aligned to Professional Practice or Student Growth
- 2. Employer/Employee Activities to Address the Goals for Improvement
- 3. Implementation Timeline
- 4. Signatures of the teacher and his/her immediate supervisor(s)
- C. If a teacher receives a rating of "developing/needs improvement" on the summative professional practice portion of the overall rating, the teacher's immediate supervisor(s) shall meet with the teacher to develop a Professional Development Plan for improvement and to ensure subsequent counseling and assistance.

The Professional Development Plan shall include the following:

- 1. Goals for Improvement Aligned to Professional Practice
- 2. Employer/Employee Activities to Address the Goals for Improvement
- 3. Implementation Timeline
- 4. Signatures of the teacher and his/her immediate supervisor(s)
- 9.14 No tenured teacher shall be terminated from employment as a result of an ineffective rating based solely on student growth in a given year.
- 9.15 Any issues, changes, modification, adjustments regarding any part or portion of the teacher observation/evaluation process will be mutually discussed by the Association and CCPS.
- 9.16 Evaluation Instruments

The CCPS and the Association Evaluation Committee will continue to jointly review the observation and evaluation instruments and make recommendations for revisions based on any regulatory or guidance changes. Every effort will be made to develop observation and evaluation instruments which are mutually agreed upon by both parties. CCPS will provide a copy of the CCPS Teacher Evaluation Process timeline to the Association on or before September 15.

9.17 CCPS and CEA will form a joint committee to develop the Peer Assistance and Review (PAR) program in accordance with the Blueprint for Maryland's Future.

# **Article 10 Non-Promotional Transfers**

- 10.1 No later than March 1, a list of anticipated non-promotional vacancies which will occur during the following school year shall be posted on Calvertnet and an email notice shall be sent to all staff. The Association shall receive an email notice when a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet.
- 10.2 All members of the bargaining unit shall have the right to request a non-promotional transfer except for:
  - A. non-tenured teachers who are rated developing/needs improvement or ineffective on their overall evaluation
  - B. non-tenured teachers in year 1
  - C. teachers on an Intensive Development Plan (IDP)
  - D. teachers on Second Class
  - E. teachers who have been administratively transferred in the current academic year, unless non-promotional transfer request is approved by the Superintendent or designee
  - F. assignment to a non-traditional classroom teaching position such as Librarian, School Counselor, Core Lead, Teacher Specialist, Dean, Pupil Personnel Worker, Social Worker, School Psychologist, or Career Ladder Level Four (4) Teacher, unless the member is currently assigned to the same position

This includes regional programs or non-classroom teacher assignments. Positions listed in the Addendum to Article I will be delineated by Classroom Teaching Positions, Regional Program Teaching Positions, Related Service Provider Positions (RSP), and Non-Classroom Positions by September 1 of each year.

Teachers who desire a change in grade, subject, and/or FTE (full or part-time) assignment within their current building shall submit a written request to their building administrator on or before February 15.

- 10.3
- A. On or before January 15, the non-promotional transfer request process will be made available, and teachers will be notified of its availability via email. Teachers who desire to transfer to another building, including the Central Office, shall complete the online, non-promotional transfer request application form indicating desired grade level, subject teaching area, non-classroom teaching position, and/or school preference and submit to the Director of Human Resources not later than February 15 of each year. Teachers are limited to applying for a transfer to no more than eight (8) schools regardless of level.
- B. The online, non-promotional transfer request application form shall be the only documentation teachers are required to submit.
- C. After February 15 and no later than March 15, a teacher who completed his/her non-promotional transfer request submission for the following school year will have the opportunity to complete a recorded interview that will be used for positions in which the teacher holds proper certification/licensure. Interviews shall be scheduled at no loss of the teacher's accumulated leave.

- D. Once a teacher accepts a non-promotional transfer offer, the teacher will not be considered for further non-promotional transfer opportunities for the upcoming school year.
- E. A teacher who declines an offer to voluntarily transfer after two (2) separate offerings will not be considered for any other non-promotional transfer opportunities for the upcoming school year.
- F. In filling known vacancies, the interview process for current teachers requesting non-promotional transfers will be completed prior to consideration of outside candidates. In the event there are no internal transfer applicants available to accept a vacancy, CCPS may hire external applicants prior to June 15. Between June 15 and July 31, teachers requesting non-promotional transfers will be considered simultaneously with outside candidates.
- G. Employees offered a transfer shall have no more than two (2) working days to respond after being notified by direct verbal contact or contact to a CCPS email address. Transfer requests will be kept on file until September 30 of each year.
- 10.4 No later than May 15, a supplemental list of known vacancies which will occur during the following school year shall be posted on Calvertnet and an email shall be sent to all staff. The Association shall receive an email notice when a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet.
- 10.5 In the event that a request for voluntary transfer is not granted, the teacher shall upon request be informed as to the reasons for the denial.

10.6

# A. Administrative Transfer

The Superintendent has the authority to assign staff via administrative transfer in order to meet the needs of the system.

# B. Involuntary Transfer

CCPS may decide to make an involuntary transfer to support the needs of the school system.

- 1. An involuntary transfer will be made only after a meeting or phone call between the employee involved and the appropriate administrator, at which time the employee will be notified of the rationale for the transfer. If the decision stands following the employee/administrator meeting or phone call, the final assignment and rationale shall be summarized in writing.
- 2. In the event that a teacher objects to the transfer discussed, upon his/her written request, the Superintendent or designee shall meet with him/her. This meeting in no way shall delay the implementation of the involuntary transfer.
- 3. Whenever involuntary transfers occur, volunteer(s) shall first be sought (an employee who volunteers for an involuntary transfer will be given the same considerations in determining the school transfer as is given to other voluntary transfers). If no volunteers are identified, factors such as certification, experience, and subject matter expertise will be considered.
- 4. A teacher transferred involuntarily out of his/her certificated/licensed area will not be reduced in salary.

- 5. An employee being involuntarily transferred or reassigned shall have the right to apply for any vacancy for which he/she is properly certificated.
- 6. Employees involuntarily transferred or reassigned have the right to request and to return to the school from which they were transferred should a position for which they are qualified or become available no later than July 30.
- 7. A teacher who is transferred involuntarily after the beginning of the school year will be given at least two full days without students or other assignments in order to perform some of the professional responsibilities required to adequately prepare for his/her transfer.
- 10.7 In any reduction in building teacher staffing, and with all other factors substantially equal such as evaluations, educational level, certification/licensure and specific training, first non-tenured teachers and second tenured teachers shall be transferred based on seniority (length of service in the Calvert County School System).

# **Article 11 School Based Labor Management Meetings**

- 11.1 The Association shall select its own representatives for a Labor Management Committee for each school/site. Committees shall have representation of no more than three (3) members representing CEA. CCPS shall select the representatives of local school administration for each school/site. Committees shall have no more than three (3) members representing local school administration.
- 11.2 The Labor Management Committee shall be scheduled to meet with the principal/supervisor of the school/site once per calendar month of the school year. Dates for the labor management meetings should be set at the beginning of the year with the school administration. By mutual agreement, the monthly meeting may be rescheduled or waived. It is the responsibility of CEA to initiate meetings.
- 11.3 Labor Management committees are responsible for creating their own ground rules and governing procedures not specifically delineated in this Agreement should they be deemed necessary by one or both parties.
- 11.4 It shall be the sole responsibility of CEA representatives to prepare the agenda for meetings and notes following meetings. CEA may provide advance notice of the agenda to local administrators to provide time to conduct research or otherwise prepare for a meeting.
- 11.5 It is recognized that either party may initiate a topic not on the agenda provided the other party concurs that it is of emergent nature.
- 11.6 Written notes from meetings may be shared with the membership of CEA as appropriate upon the prior approval of their accuracy from the principal. The approval of minutes shall not be arbitrarily or capriciously delayed or denied. All minutes shall only reflect what occurred during the meeting.
- 11.7 Audio recording shall not be permitted during Labor Management Committee Meetings.
- 11.8 Labor Management Committee meetings are not formal contract negotiations and cannot add to, subtract from, or otherwise modify the terms this Agreement.
- 11.9 It is expressly understood that Labor Management Committee meetings shall not be regularly held during regularly scheduled instructional time. CEA members shall not be entitled to workshop pay or per diem for attendance of Labor Management Committee Meetings.
- 11.10 The parties recognize that while issues that may also be addressed through the grievance procedure may be discussed at Labor Management Committee Meetings, these meetings are not a substitute for the grievance procedure. Grievances that have already been filed with the designated individual shall not be discussed during Labor Management Committee Meetings.
- 11.11 Issues that cannot be resolved at local Labor Management Committee meetings may be raised by CEA with the Superintendent at the monthly meeting.

# **Article 12 Promotions**

- 12.1 Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) declares its support of a policy of filling regular promotional vacancies (i.e. Administrative and Supervisory positions, Specialists, Deans, and Career Ladder Level 4 positions), whenever reasonably possible, from within its own county school system. Whenever a regular vacancy arises during the school year, CCPS shall promptly post a notice of same on Calvertnet for no less than ten (10) calendar days before the position is filled and notify the Association thereof. An email shall be sent to all staff when a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet. The Association shall receive an email notice when a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet with attached postings.
- 12.2 This Article shall not be subject to the arbitration provisions of this Agreement unless there is an alleged violation of the procedural posting requirements. Any allegation that the Superintendent's action is arbitrary, unreasonable or illegal with regard to race, color, religion, gender, age, ancestry or national origin, familial status, marital status, physical disability, mental disability, sexual orientation or genetic information must be processed as a 4-205c(3) appeal.
- 12.3 This Article shall not be applicable to positions designated as Executive Staff. A list of these positions shall be made available to the Association on or before July 1<sup>st</sup> or as positions are so designated.

# **Article 13 Sick Leave**

- 13.1 Each teacher shall be allowed minimum sick leave at the rate of one (1) workday per month, the annual total of which shall be available at the beginning of the school year. The maximum number of sick leave days which may be accumulated shall be unlimited.
- 13.2 Upon written request, Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) shall advance sick leave days which will be charged against subsequent accrual, provided that the number of days advanced will not exceed ten (10) days. A teacher who has a deficit in sick leave shall not be advanced sick leave. Advanced sick leave will not be applied retroactively to absences that occurred prior to the approval date. A teacher, upon termination of services with CCPS, who has any sick leave indebtedness, shall have the amount of such indebtedness deducted from the final salary check(s).
- 13.3 The Superintendent or designee may require a doctor's certificate of illness from the teacher's personal medical provider and/or the medical provider of the Board of Education whenever there is a reasonable cause to believe that an absence that exceeds three (3) days is not due to a bona fide illness or when an established pattern of leave usage has occurred.
- 13.4 Sick leave may be used for personal illness, illness in the family or dental and medical appointments which cannot be made outside of working hours.
- 13.5 Teachers transferring into the Calvert County Public School System shall be allowed to transfer from other Maryland Public School Systems up to a maximum of 180 unused accumulated sick leave days.
- 13.6 Teachers shall, at their request, be allowed to use sick leave for absence due to disability connected with/or resulting from pregnancy. Upon the termination of such disability, the teacher must return to work unless she resigns or requests a leave of absence.
- 13.7 Teachers shall be notified of accumulative sick leave on each regular salary pay voucher.
- 13.8 The rights of employees to family and medical leave shall be as set forth within the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 and Board Policy 6019.
  - The Association shall be provided a copy of all Board policies, forms, and procedures regarding FMLA implementation. Nothing in this Article shall be read to either eliminate or reduce in any way any rights provided under the negotiated agreement.
- 13.9 Workers' Compensation
  - A. An employee who sustains an accidental personal injury or occupational disease arising out of and in the course of assigned duties and whose claim is ruled to be compensable under the Workers' Compensation Laws of Maryland shall be approved for a leave of absence for up to thirty-five (35) consecutive or intermittent duty days with full salary as long as the employee is eligible for temporary total disability and is covered under Workers' Compensation. The employee agrees to remit to the Board all Workers' Compensation payments for temporary disability received during this period or the district will withhold the funds from the subsequent paycheck(s).

- B. After thirty-five (35) duty days, employees who still qualify for disability payments will receive only the Workers' Compensation payments for temporary disability.
- C. An employee's accrued leave will not be charged during the periods identified in 13.10A and 13.10B or the day when the injury occurred.
- D. CCPS will continue to pay its share of the employee's health insurance premium cost during periods identified in 13.10A and 13.10B.
- E. Upon report of the injury, the employee will be provided paper directions to the electronic Worker's Compensation Claimant form. Upon request, a paper copy of the Claimant form will be provided to the employee.
- 13.10 CCPS will provide assault leave pursuant to 6-111 of the Education Article and the related local Board policy and procedures.
- 13.11 An employee sick leave transfer process will be available for all employees who have exhausted all of their accrued sick leave, annual leave, and all but two days of personal leave, and:
  - A. Who experience a medically documented incapacitating or catastrophic illness, injury or quarantine, and/or
  - B. Who has a spouse, child, or parent who experiences a medically documented incapacitating or catastrophic illness, injury or quarantine.
    - 1. The maximum number of days that an eligible individual may receive from transfer may not exceed the specified duration per a doctor's note and no more than a total of seventy (70) of his or her workdays each fiscal year or the number of workdays remaining in the fiscal year for the employee, whichever is less. In the event that an employee receives less than the aforementioned maximum in their initial transfer request, the employee may make additional transfer requests during the same fiscal year up to the aforementioned maximum provided the employee remains eligible for the sick leave transfer process.
    - 2. The contributing employee must have at least 15 days of accrued sick leave following the transfer.
    - 3. Any employee who has been deemed ineligible for sick leave transfer has the right to appeal the initial decision to the Superintendent or designee and may be represented by the Association during the appeal process.
    - 4. Donated sick leave will be credited to the recipient's sick leave balance as soon as practicable upon approval by Human Resources and will be reflected on the recipient's paycheck stub in accordance with payroll deadlines. The leave will be available for the recipient to use as he/she would use his/her normal sick leave.
    - 5. Sick leave will be donated in whole days only, with a minimum donation of one day, but it may be used in increments as normal sick leave.
    - 6. Unused transferred sick leave will be rolled over into the employee's sick leave balance beginning the new fiscal year.
  - C. Who are pregnant and who qualify for maternity leave. They are eligible for up to 60 days of transferred sick leave. This language will sunset when the Time to Care Act (TTCA) becomes effective.

- 13.12 CCPS and CEA will form a joint committee by July 1, 2024 to develop implementation requirements for the Time to Care Act.
- 13.13 Upon return to work after fifteen (15) consecutive days or more of sick leave, a substitute will be provided for one (1) day for transitional purposes if requested by the teacher.

# **Article 14 Parental Leave**

- 14.1 Tenured teachers shall, at their request, be granted a leave of absence, without pay, for childbearing and/or child rearing for such period of time as they specify within the then current school year. When possible, the teacher shall notify Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) thirty days in advance of such leave. In the event the teacher requests to extend said leave beyond the school year in which it is granted, the teacher shall notify the Superintendent of that intent by March 1. Upon notification, said leave will be extended for one (1) full school year unless the teacher and CCPS mutually agree to a shorter period of time, or unless otherwise provided by law. A leave of absence will not be approved or extended for any teacher whose teaching certificate or licensure has expired.
- 14.2 No teacher on said leave shall, on the basis of said leave, be denied the opportunity to substitute in CCPS upon presentation of medical testimony that the teacher is able to do so.
- 14.3 Tenured teachers adopting an infant child shall, at their request, receive similar leave which shall commence upon the teacher's receiving de facto custody of said infant, or earlier if necessary, to fill the requirement for the adoption.
- 14.4 CCPS shall offer to the teacher upon the expiration of parental leave the first available position for which the teacher is certificated without creating a new position or transferring another teacher.
- 14.5 To the extent permitted by law, the teacher on leave shall be afforded the opportunity to continue payments toward retirement and/or insurance programs. The teacher must pay in advance, at least one (1) month, the full cost for any such benefits.

# **Article 15 Sabbatical Leave**

- 15.1 A maximum of two (2) teachers may be approved for a full-year sabbatical leave during any one school year.
- 15.2 A request for sabbatical leave of absence shall be made to the Superintendent by February 1.
- 15.3 The teacher shall have completed at least five (5) consecutive full school years in active service as a regularly appointed teacher in the Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS), in order to be eligible to receive a sabbatical leave.
- 15.4 Teachers on sabbatical leave of absence will be paid at one-half of their annual salary rate. In the event that the teacher receives a stipend, fellowship, or scholarship which, after subtracting the cost of tuition, fees, and books, exceeds one-half of the employee's regular salary, the CCPS contribution will be diminished by the amount in excess thereof.
- 15.5 Upon returning from sabbatical leave, the teacher shall be placed on the salary schedule at the level which the teacher would have achieved had the teacher remained actively employed in the system during the teacher's period of absence.
- 15.6 A sabbatical leave of absence may be extended without pay or increment for one (1) additional year.
- 15.7 The teacher shall agree to return to employment with CCPS for one (1) full year in the event of a one-half year sabbatical leave, or two (2) full years in the event of a full year of sabbatical leave. If the teacher accepts employment elsewhere and fails to return and remain in service pursuant to the provisions of this section, any money paid to the teacher shall be refunded to CCPS. The teacher also shall agree to notify the Superintendent or designee from the Human Resources Department for approval of any projected changes in his/her plans for professional improvements.
- 15.8 The teacher returning from a sabbatical leave of absence for professional improvement shall submit to the Superintendent or designee from the Human Resources Department a report containing transcripts of all college and university study while on leave, a description of travel, and all other items of information pertinent to an evaluation of the teacher's program.
- 15.9 The teacher on leave shall be afforded the opportunity to continue payments toward retirement and all other payroll deductions provided for in this agreement.

# **Article 16 Temporary Leaves of Absence**

- 16.1 At the beginning of every school year:
  - A. Each non-tenured teacher shall be credited with two (2) days to be used for the teacher's personal business.
  - B. Tenured teachers shall be credited with three (3) days to be used for the teacher's personal business.
  - C. Tenured teachers who have completed twenty (20) or more years of experience in Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) shall be credited with four (4) days to be used for the teacher's personal business.
  - D. Teachers who have completed twenty-seven (27) or more years of experience earned in CCPS shall be credited with an additional personal day to be used for the teacher's personal business.
  - E. A teacher planning to use a personal business day shall notify the principal in advance. No reason for the request shall be required and leave shall not be denied unless a substantial number of teachers in the same school have previously elected and been pre-approved for leave this same day. In the event that prior notification is not possible, the Superintendent or designee may require proof that an emergency situation existed.
  - F. If unused, these days shall be added to sick leave.
  - G. Requests for personal leave for days preceding or following a school vacation or holiday may not be approved.
- 16.2 For teachers with ten (10) or more years of experience with CCPS, unused personal leave shall be cumulative up to six (6) days; unused days thereafter shall be converted to cumulative sick leave. Teachers may not request more than 5 consecutive personal leave days during the instructional year.
- 16.3 Tenured teachers with ten (10) or more years of experience earned in CCPS shall be allowed to convert one day of sick leave, per school year, to be used as personal leave when all personal leave has been exhausted.
- 16.4 In the event of an emergency a teacher may request of the Superintendent or a designee that up to two (2) days of accrued sick leave may be used. An emergency shall refer to an unforeseen occurrence or combination of circumstances which calls for immediate action or remedy.
- 16.5 A. Teachers shall be granted leave with pay for jury duty. A teacher called for jury duty shall receive his/her regular salary provided appropriate documentation from the courts is submitted to the employee's supervisor.
  - B. When an employee, who is on jury duty, is excused by the court on their scheduled workday, the employee shall promptly report to work. The teacher, upon their return to work, will be given their duty-free lunch and planning time to the extent that time permits within the student day.
- 16.6 Teachers who are authorized to leave prior to the dismissal of students to participate in an approved professional program will be deducted the amount required for a substitute.

- 16.7 Teachers who are enrolled in an accredited program in education approved by CCPS with a course requirement that can only be completed during the school workday may request up to two (2) professional leave days per internship and must cover the cost of the substitute. Teachers must secure pre-approval for the professional leave by their immediate supervisor and the director of Human Resources or his/her designee. The leave will be granted in full or half-day increments. Payment at the cost of a non-degreed substitute must accompany the professional leave request. In the event that the approved program requirements exceed the allotted two (2) professional leave days, additional days may be requested in writing of the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 16.8 Employees in pursuit of their National Board Certification (NBC) may request up to one (1) professional leave day to complete the content assessment component of the NBC to be used on the day of the assessment. Employees must submit evidence of assessment registration date and time when submitting the professional leave request.
- 16.9 Twelve (12) month teachers shall earn annual leave according to the following employment allotment:

1-13 years experience	17 days
14-19 years experience	18 days
20-25 years experience	19 days
over 25 years experience	21 days

For any one year, a twelve-month unit member may carry forward up to, but not exceeding, twenty (20) days of annual leave earned for the previous year. The maximum number of days of annual leave available at any time is thirty (30) days. (For each year, annual leave that is not used or forwarded shall be automatically transferred to a unit member's accumulated sick leave.)

Teachers shall be compensated for no more than thirty (30) days of annual leave upon separation of service.

16.10 Bereavement leave is leave taken by an employee due to the death of another individual, usually a close relative. The time is usually taken by an employee to grieve the loss of a close family member, prepare for and attend a funeral, and/or attend to any other post-death matters.

Teachers are entitled to the following bereavement leave:

- A. Not more than five (5) workdays of absence with pay shall be allowed for each death in the immediate family, including child, grandchild, stepchild, parent, stepparent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother, sister, spouse, or any person who has lived regularly in the household of the employee.
- B. Not more than three (3) workdays of absence with pay shall be allowed for pregnancy loss due to miscarriage or termination of pregnancy for medical reasons.
- C. Not more than two (2) workdays of absence with pay shall be allowed for the death of a grandparent, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece or nephew.

- D. One day of leave with pay shall be granted for the death of a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, great-grandchild or great- grandparent.
- E. If the deceased is an ex-spouse and/or ex-in-law and there are children between the parties, two (2) days leave may be allowed. One day must be used on the day of the funeral.
- F. Bereavement leave does not need to be taken on consecutive workdays.
- G. Other available leave may be used if a teacher is required to travel out-of-state for funeral or other bereavement related matters. This use of leave shall not be denied.
- H. Upon written request from a teacher stating the circumstances which make such leave necessary, the Superintendent may authorize additional leave days. If the teacher has exhausted all accrued leave, then the Superintendent may authorize additional bereavement leave.
- I. Should a teacher be named executor of an estate for those relatives listed above, he/she may elect to use one (1) of the bereavement leave days in performance of this responsibility. The employee may use accrued sick or personal leave accumulated for this matter. This leave shall not be denied.
- J. This leave provision shall not be applicable to employees on summer and winter breaks, except in cases where the funeral has not taken place.
- 16.11 A teacher, who is subpoenaed as a witness in a civil or criminal case or is asked to appear as a witness for the Board with or without a subpoena, shall be granted paid leave for that period of time he/she is unable to report to work. Application for such leave must be made in advance and submitted with a copy of the subpoena.

# **Article 17 Extended Leaves of Absence**

- 17.1 Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) agrees that one (1) tenured teacher designated by the Association will upon request be granted a leave of absence for up to eight (8) years without pay for the purpose of engaging in Association (local, state, or national) activities.
- 17.2 CCPS will grant a leave of absence without pay to one (1) tenured teacher to campaign for, or serve in a public office, or to campaign for another candidate for a public office(s) for one (1) full school year.
- 17.3 A teacher may be granted a leave of absence without pay for illness.
- 17.4 Other leaves of absence without pay may be granted to tenured teachers by the Superintendent or designee for good reason.
- 17.5 A leave of absence pursuant to this article is subject to approval each year by the Superintendent or designee.
- 17.6 To the extent permitted by law, teachers taking leaves of absence pursuant to this article shall be afforded the opportunity to continue payments toward retirement and/or insurance programs. The teacher must pay in advance, at least one (1) month, the full cost for any such benefits.
- 17.7 Accumulated sick leave prior to leaves of absence will be restored to all employees returning from approved leaves of absence.
- 17.8 In the event the teacher requests to extend said leave beyond the school year in which it is granted, the teacher shall notify the Superintendent of that intent by March 1.
- 17.9 A leave of absence will not be approved or extended for any teacher whose teaching certificate or licensure has expired.
- 17.10 Prior to requesting a CCPS-approved extended leave of absence, the teacher will have the option to request and be granted the opportunity to meet with a representative from the Department of Human Resources to discuss potential salary, employment status, and benefits impacts as a result of such leave.
- 17.11 Prior to assigning a teacher who has submitted timely notice expressing his/her interest in returning from a CCPS-approved extended leave of absence, the Department of Human Resources will process, in order, all administrative transfers, involuntary transfers, and voluntary non-promotional transfers based on certification.
  - In the event that an assignment is not available for a teacher who desires to return from a CCPS-approved extended leave of absence, the teacher will continue on an extended leave of absence until a vacancy for which s/he is certified.
- 17.12 Teachers will not be required to create substitute plans, grade, and/or keep records of student performance while on a CCPS- approved extended leave of absence.

#### **Article 18 Academic Freedom**

The Board of Education and the Association agree that academic freedom is essential to the fulfillment of the purpose of the Calvert County School System, and they acknowledge the fundamental need to protect teachers from censorship or restraint which might interfere with their obligation to present fairly all sides of issues in their teaching functions. Teachers shall be responsible to provide students opportunity to investigate all facets, sides, and/or opinions of and about any and all topics introduced and shall strive to promote tolerance for the views of others and for the right of individuals to form and hold differing views and opinions. Both parties understand that classroom presentations and discussions shall be relevant to course content as prescribed in the appropriate curriculum guides adopted by the Board of Education and appropriate to the maturity level and intellectual ability of the students.

#### **Article 19 Maintenance of Classroom Control and Discipline**

The CCPS is committed to providing a safe learning environment for students and staff consistent with federal and state laws.

When a student is, by behavior, seriously disrupting the instructional program to the detriment of other students, the classroom teacher may temporarily remove the student from the class and refer the student to the principal. In such cases, the teacher will furnish the principal, in writing using the student discipline referral form, as promptly as the teaching obligation will allow, full particulars of the incident. If a student's disruptive behavior results in action less than suspension, the principal shall confer with the teacher who referred the student to the principal before returning the student to that teacher's classroom. The principal may satisfy this requirement by conferring with the teacher before returning the student to the classroom except when prevented from doing so by statute/regulation or in an emergency situation. A response regarding disposition of referrals initiated above shall be forwarded to the teacher in writing using the student discipline referral form within a reasonable time following the original submittal.

"Confer" means a discussion or dialogue by any means, for example, telephone, electronic mail, or face-to-face meeting, where the views of the teacher are communicated and considered.

### **Article 20 Payroll Deductions**

- 20.1 In addition to deductions mentioned elsewhere in this agreement, Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) agrees to deduct from teachers' salaries payments for the following:
  - A. Group Insurance
  - B. Current Educator's Income Protection Plan
  - C. Tax shelter annuities approved by the Superintendent
  - D. Flexible Spending Accounts as approved by the Superintendent

#### **Article 21 Compensation**

- 21.1 Teachers shall be paid according to the provisions of Appendix A.
- 21.2 Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS) will make twenty-four (24) salary payments on the 15<sup>th</sup> and 30<sup>th</sup> of each month. If the 15<sup>th</sup> or 30<sup>th</sup> falls on a weekend, payment shall be issued on the preceding Friday. All teachers are encouraged to have automatic payroll direct deposit.
- 21.3 A. Voluntary extra-duty assignments for the next school year shall be paid according to the Board's Extra Pay for Extra Duty Longevity Pay Scale found in Appendix B.
  - B. "Extra-duty" is defined to be that additional responsibility assigned to a professionally certificated, full-time teacher by the principal (and the Superintendent's Designee) which shall be performed at a time or times other than during the teacher's regular duty day.
  - C. All extra duty, summer school, extended school year, workshops, mentor program, and other county-wide programs as authorized by the Superintendent will be advertised. CCPS shall promptly post a notice of same on Calvertnet for no less than fourteen (14) calendar days before the position is filled and notify the Association thereof. An email shall be sent to all staff when a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet. The Association shall receive an email notice when a vacancy is posted on Calvertnet. During the summer months, a list of such vacancies and/or new positions shall be available on Calvertnet. No position shall be filled on a regular basis for fourteen (14) calendar days following this notification.
  - D. For all coaching positions and club sponsors, preference will be given first to CCPS certificated teachers and then in the following order: 1) CCPS employees 2) MPSSAA credentialed coaches. In the event there are no candidates, CCPS may appoint for the duration of the school year an emergency coach who is eligible to hold a Maryland teaching certificate and is 21 years old or older. Once the school year begins, vacancies that are caused by unexpected resignations will be re-advertised system-wide for a period of two weeks. The principal may appoint an acting coach or sponsor until the position can be filled permanently. However, the position must be filled within a four (4) week period.
  - E. Extra-duty compensation for coaches will be paid in two (2) equal installments; one on the first pay period after the beginning of the season and one at the end of the season. Sponsors of activities shall be paid in two (2) equal installments on the first payroll in December and the first payroll in June. Online teachers will be paid in two (2) equal installments; one on the first pay period after the beginning of the semester and the one at the end of the semester.
  - F. Teachers shall remain in extra pay positions identified on the Board's Extra Pay for Extra Duty Longevity Pay Scale and those positions will not be considered as vacancies unless the teachers resign or are removed for cause.
  - G. Teachers whose extra pay for extra duty responsibilities extend beyond the school year because student/s in an activity represent CCPS at academic competitions/contests shall receive workshop pay for each day that the teacher is in attendance, provided such participation has been authorized by the school principal and the appropriate supervisor/director.

- H. CCPS will notify CEA when an extra duty for extra pay position is changed, added, or deleted two (2) weeks prior to the Superintendent taking action on such decision. Any revisions to the extra duty for extra pay scale and job descriptions for the upcoming school year will be posted no later than August 1 or upon ratification of a successor agreement.
- I. In any year that step raises occur in the Regular and Transitional Salary Schedule for Teachers Holding Degrees, step raises shall occur in the Extra Pay for Extra Duty Longevity Pay Scale.
- J. In any year that a COLA occurs in the Regular and Transitional Salary Schedule for Teachers Holding Degrees, the same COLA shall occur in the Extra Pay for Extra Duty Longevity Pay Scale. If a mid-year COLA occurs, then the COLA will be reflected in the Extra Pay for Extra Duty Pay Scale beginning the following fiscal year.
- K. The opportunity for participation in Home and Hospital Teaching will be posted on Calvertnet. The posting will include information about the application process.
- L. Teachers who volunteer and receive no compensation for an extra duty for extra pay position shall sign a contract indicating no compensation. If they are hired into the same position for pay the teacher shall receive credit for years of service based on their volunteer contract in the same position. Should the individual never be hired into the same position for pay, there shall be no expectation of credit for service. Credit for service for experience outside CCPS may be granted by the Superintendent or designee for extra duty for extra pay positions.
- 21.4 Extra-pay for extra-duty assignments, summer school, extended school year, workshops, mentor program, and other county- wide programs as authorized by the Superintendent will be added to regular salary payments.
- 21.5 Teachers of summer school, extended school year, and other county-wide programs as authorized by the Superintendent shall be paid at an hourly rate of \$42.00 through June 30, 2026, and \$43.00 beginning July 1, 2026.
- 21.6 Teachers who voluntarily give up their planning period for the school year and agree to teach an additional class shall be paid at their hourly per diem rate.
- 21.7 Teachers participating in summer workshops shall be paid at a rate of \$231.00 per day through June 30, 2026, \$238.00 beginning July 1, 2026, and \$245.00 beginning July 1, 2027. Teachers participating in workshops funded by the Maryland State Department of Education (MSDE) will be paid the MSDE daily workshop rate.

Teachers participating in workshop activities for curriculum development, professional development and/or planning for co-teaching which occur beyond the regular workday shall be paid at the hourly rate of \$33.00 through June 30, 2026, \$34.00 beginning July 1, 2026, and \$35.00 beginning July 1, 2027.

- 21.8 Teachers will be reimbursed at the IRS mileage reimbursement rate per mile for all miles driven in connection with the teacher's employment pursuant to CCPS Policy#5600 and its related procedures.
- 21.9 Mentors will be assigned to all non-tenured teachers completing the CCPS induction program, teachers on Second Class and teachers on IDP. All mentors shall complete mentoring training prior to working as mentors. CCPS will attempt not to exceed the ratio of one (1) mentor for four (4) first-year, non-tenured teachers.
- 21.10 A National Board Certification (NBC) pensionable salary adjustment of \$2,500 or in a matching amount as determined by the Maryland General Assembly, whichever is higher, (not included as a per diem rate) will be provided for each year the certification remains in good standing.

Speech Language Pathologists and Audiologists with American Speech/Language Hearing Association certification will receive an annual salary adjustment of \$2,500, provided their certification remains in good standing.

School Psychologists with Nationally Certified School Psychologist certification will receive an annual salary adjustment of \$2,500, provided their certification remains in good standing.

Social Workers with LCSW-C certification will receive an annual salary adjustment of \$2,500, provided their certification remains in good standing.

Occupational Therapist with National Board Certification in Occupational Therapy will receive an annual salary adjustment of \$2,500, provided their certification remains in good standing.

21.11 Teachers who volunteer or are asked to serve as substitutes when a substitute cannot be secured will be compensated at an hourly rate of \$35.00.

Elementary teachers who volunteer or are asked to serve as a substitute, when a substitute cannot be secured will be compensated at an hourly rate of \$35.00 divided by the number of teachers used to cover the class. This does not apply to non-instructional duties.

If CCPS cannot provide a substitute for related services providers legally required to make-up student service hours and after consulting with their supervisor, it is jointly determined there is no reasonable way to make-up the service hours within the duty day then the Board will pay the provider by the hour based on his/her per diem rate for any student service hours that the parties mutually agree to make-up beyond the duty day.

- 21.12 Teachers who enroll or are already enrolled in the CCPS Wellness Program will receive up to a \$300 annual stipend. This stipend will be applied on a 24-pay basis to cover program costs via payroll deductions. Employees who do not participate in the CCPS Wellness Program payroll deduction have the option of being reimbursed for an exercise or health program and/or exercise gym or health club membership upon submission of a valid receipt.
- 21.13 High School Activities Directors, upon completion of the CCPS cell phone authorization process,

- shall be eligible to receive the CCPS cell phone stipend as outlined on the CCPS cellphone authorization form.
- 21.14 A teacher who is required to generate lesson plans and grade student work for another teaching position that has been vacant for more than two (2) weeks shall be paid \$30.00 per day. If planning and grading responsibilities are shared among multiple teachers, then payment to those teachers will be divided equally not to exceed a total compensation of \$30 per day.
- 21.15 On or before August 1, 2024, CEA and CCPS will meet to finalize the Extra Pay Extra Duty (EPED) compensation scales.

#### **Article 22 Fringe Benefits**

#### 22.1

- A. For FY2021, CCPS shall offer three health insurance programs: a Traditional plan, a Preferred Provider Option (PPO) plan, and an HMO plan. Beginning July 1, 2021, CCPS shall offer three health insurance programs: a Traditional plan, a Point of Service (POS) plan, and an HMO plan. A new employee hired on or after July 1, 2001 may not enroll in the Traditional plan for the duration of this contract. Details for the health insurance plans can be found in the current CCPS Health Benefits Options booklet.
- B. Contributions for employee health insurance costs will be calculated on a pre-tax basis to the extent allowed by law.
- C. The projected dollar amount of premium cost increase reflects an agreed upon percentage of the premium costs and shall be included in the terms of this agreement. In all three plans, the employee will pay 10% of the Individual Plan premium cost, 20% of the Family 2-Employees Plan premium cost, and 28% of the Self/Child, Self/Spouse, and Family Plan premium cost.
- D. CCPS shall provide coverage for air ambulance (helicopter) transportation for the Traditional, PPO (FY2021), POS (beginning July 1, 2021), and HMO plans at 100% of the allowable benefit, if medically necessary as defined by the plan provider.
- E. CCPS shall provide coverage for Emergency Room and Urgent Care services. The member's copay for Emergency Room will be \$75 per visit for all plans. The member's copay for Urgent Care will be \$15 per visit for all plans. The Emergency Room and/or Urgent Care copay will be waived if the member is admitted to the hospital. Accidental injuries that result in emergency room visits will not be charged copays.
- F. CCPS shall provide a prescription drug benefit for plan members. The prescription drug copay structure shall be as follows: \$8 for generic, \$15 for formulary, and \$30 for non-formulary. Details for the prescription drug insurance plan can be found in the current CCPS Health Benefits Options booklet.
- G. CCPS shall offer a dental insurance and vision insurance plan. Details for the dental and vision insurance plans can be found in the current CCPS Health Benefits Options booklet.
  - In the vision and dental plans, the employee will pay 10% of the Individual Plan, 20% of the Family 2-Employees Plan premium cost, and 28% of the Self/Child, Self/Spouse, and Family Plan premium cost.
- H. Class IV services are subject to a lifetime maximum up to \$1,750 for orthodontic care.
- I. CCPS shall offer hearing aid benefits for covered children and adult members. Details for the hearing aid benefits can be found in the current CCPS Health Benefits Options booklet.

- A copy of the plan document as provided by healthcare providers to CCPS will be available for review at the Board office, upon request of the Association. The settlement agreements, experience reports, and the annual renewal document as provided by healthcare providers to CCPS will be shared with CEA and CAESS within thirty (30) workdays of request.
- 22.3 CCPS, working with CEA and CAESS, shall be committed to cost containment measures and savings on all aspects of the health care program. CCPS reserves the right to bid the CCPS-sponsored Health Plan. CEA and CAESS will have the opportunity to read and offer input to all responses to all requests for proposals for health plans within 15 workdays of receipt of all proposals by CCPS.

#### 22.4 Flexible Spending Accounts

CCPS will make available flexible spending accounts, as provided under Internal Revenue Service regulations, for dependent care and health care costs. Payroll deductions shall begin subsequent to making necessary changes to CCPS payroll processing system and selecting a third-party administrator

#### 22.5 Healthcare Benefits Committee

The parties shall establish a Healthcare Benefits Committee to promote a better understanding of the CCPS healthcare insurance program, its implementation and utilization. The Committee has no administrative or managerial authority. The Committee will meet a minimum of two times per year. The Committee will include four members appointed by CEA, four members appointed by CAESS, and eight members appointed by CCPS. CASA and Meet & Confer may also appoint four members each to participate in the Committee. Either party may appoint one or more outside consultants who shall be permitted to attend.

#### 22.6 In the event CCPS receives a healthcare refund from its healthcare provider:

- A. funds will first be used to replenish as needed the CCPS reserve fund to ensure a minimum balance equivalent to 10% of current annual healthcare costs are maintained; healthcare costs are defined as premiums paid to the primary carrier and budgeted costs for prescription
- B. results for the prescription plan will compare budget numbers with actual results (including rebates); costs above budgeted amounts will reduce any refund received from the primary carrier; costs below budgeted amounts will be added to any refund received
- C. any remaining funds (above the 10% reserve requirement) will be divided proportionate to the percentage of employer and employee premium contributions
- D. the employee refund will be disbursed in the form of a premium holiday, provided the refund amount covers the monthly premium holiday cost
- E. any remaining funds from the employee refund not applied to the premium holiday will held in a premium holiday reserve account and considered when future healthcare refunds are received

#### TRADITIONAL PROGRAM BASIC HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL/SURGICAL CARE

#### **INPATIENT**

**Hospital Benefits** 70 days of inpatient Medical Surgical care and 70

> days of inpatient Psychiatric care are covered in full to include ancillary services and semi-private room rate (private room when medically necessary).

Two days coverage for every unused hospital day **Extended Care Facility** 

Surgery, Maternity, and Medical care are covered at 100% of Allowed Benefit (AB). **Physician Services** 

Outpatient

Hospital and/or physician services covered at 100% of AB. **Surgical Services** 

Hospital and/or physician services paid at 100%. **Accident Benefits** 

Hospital and/or physician services covered at 100% of AB. Medical Emergency

Paid at 100% of AB. Physical Therapy

Paid at 100% of AB. No maximum. X-ray and Laboratory

#### **MAJOR MEDICAL**

Program provides benefits after basic coverage is exhausted, and for medical office visits, ambulance care and durable equipment.

> Deductible \$100 per individual, \$300/family

Coinsurance 80/20

\$2,000 per individual Stop Loss Outpatient Psychiatric Per State Mandate

#### NOTES:

A. All percentages are subject to UCR determination.

B. Case Management program included.

See Item 22.1 above for information about emergency room and urgent copays beginning September 1, 2020

### PPO PROGRAM POS PROGRAM AS OF JULY 2021

<b>HOSPITAL</b>	<u>IN PPO</u>	OUT OF PPO
Inpatient Medical Care	365 days of care in full	365 days of care subject to deductible and co-insurance
Outpatient Hospital Care Accidental injury/hospital	Hospital paid in full	Paid same as in-network
Outpatient Radiation/ Chemotherapy	Outpatient facility \$25 copay. Outpatient facility practitioner \$0 copay; \$10 office copay	Subject to deductible and co- insurance
PROFESSIONAL CHARGES		
In or Outpatient surgery	Covered at 100% of AB.	Subject to deductible and co-insurance
Voluntary Second Opinion	Covered 100% of AB after \$10 copay.	Subject to deductible and 80-20 co- insurance
Inpatient medical care	Covered at 100% of AB.	Subject to deductible and co- insurance
Accidental injury care	Covered at 100% of AB.	Covered at 100% of AB.
Outpatient Radiation/ Chemotherapy	Facility practitioner \$0 copay; \$10 office copay	Subject to deductible and coinsurance
Outpatient Medical	\$10 copay in a hospital, \$10 office copay	Subject to deductible and co- insurance
<b>DIAGNOSTIC OUTPATIEN</b>		
Outpatient X-ray and Lab	\$25 copay in a hospital/ facility, \$10 office copay	100% of AB after \$25 copay (hospital setting). Subject to deductible and co-insurance (office setting)
MISCELLANEOUS CARE		
Outpatient Physical, Occupational and Speech Therapy - 100 visit limit per condition per benefit period	100% of AB in a hospital	Subject to deductible and coinsurance

Psychiatric Care (subject to
Mental Health Parity)

365 days of care in full 365 days of care subject

to deductible and co-insurance

Outpatient in PPO Out of PPO

Outpatient Facility \$25 copay Outpatient Facility Practitioner \$10 copay; Office \$10 copay Subject to deductible and 80-20

co- insurance

<sup>\*</sup>If a Patient is referred out of PPO by a PPO physician, the provider will be paid as if he/she was a PPO provider, and out of PPO deductibles and copayments will not apply. Any PPO copayment will apply.

Private Duty Nursing Outpatient only. Outpatient only.

Pre-certification required 100% of AB Pre-certification required and subject to deductible

and copay

Deductible None \$100 Ind/\$200 family

Copay \$10 office as indicated 20% to out of pocket limit

See Item 22.1 above for information about emergency room and urgent copays beginning

September 1, 2020

Out of pocket Combined amount - in and out of PPO, \$500 individual, out of PPO, \$500 individual.

\$1000 family \$1000 family

A - Admission Review

B - Voluntary Second Surgical Opinion

C - Mental Health and Substance Abuse Review Program

D - Care Management

#### **HMO PROGRAM**

CCPS will offer an HMO product option to all eligible participants beginning in FY 2005. The specifications and carrier to be determined by the Superintendent in consultation with representatives of the three bargaining groups.

#### PRESCRIPTION DRUG

The Board shall provide a prescription drug benefit for plan members. The prescription drug copay structure shall be as follows: \$8 for generic, \$15 for formulary, and \$30 for non-formulary. If a generic drug is available, the program covers the brand name to cost of the generic.

<sup>\*</sup>Note - All out of PPO payments are subject to UCR determination

#### **VISION CARE**

A specific fee schedule applies benefits toward charges for eye examination once every 12 months and necessary lenses and frames once every 12 months.

Vision Exam	\$110
Frames	\$110
Lenses per pair	
Single	\$95
Bifocal	\$125
Trifocal	\$150
Lenticular	\$200
Contacts	\$380

#### **DENTAL BENEFIT**

Class I	Preventive and Diagnostic Services	Covered at 100%
---------	------------------------------------	-----------------

Class II (includes Surgical and Restorative Services 20% Subject to annual deductible

inlays and crowns) member copayment

Class III Prosthetics Subject to annual deductible

and a 50% member

copayment

Class IV Orthodontics Care subject to 50% member

copayment at an \$1,750 lifetime maximum (effective

September 1, 2020)

Annual Program Deductible \$25.00 per individual and \$50.00 per family deductible

applies to Class II and Class III services

Annual Program Maximum All care, except Class IV services, are subject to an

annual maximum of \$1,800

Lifetime Maximum Only Class IV services are subject to a lifetime maximum.

Program provides up to \$1,750 for orthodontic care (effective

September 1, 2020)

NOTE: CCPS reserves the right to place all insurance programs out on bid provided the specifications and plan design provides to members no less benefits than those provided during the previous contract period.

22.7 CCPS shall provide Group Term Life Insurance with double indemnity for accidental death for all active, full-time employees. The amount of life insurance per employee shall be 150 percent of their annual salary.

Employees hired before July 1, 1989 will be able to carry this amount into retirement with the individual paying 100% of the cost.

Employees hired after July 1, 1989 and before July 1, 1999 will be able to choose one of the following options at retirement:

- A. carry a \$60,000 term life insurance policy into retirement with the individual paying 100% of the premium cost.
- B. carry a \$10,000 term life insurance policy into retirement provided by CCPS at no cost to the retiree.

For employees hired after July 1, 1999, CCPS will provide, at no cost, a \$10,000 term life insurance policy for all retirees.

- 22.8 CCPS shall provide an Employee Assistance Program.
- 22.9 A. CCPS will pay up to 75% of the cost of the individual plan for retirees for health, vision care, dental and prescriptive drug insurance pursuant to the above specifications. The retired employee shall be responsible for the remainder of the premium cost for this coverage as well as the full premium cost for any dependency coverage. The employee must be retiring from CCPS with five or more years of creditable service in CCPS to be eligible for this benefit and must be receiving retirement benefits from either Maryland Retirement System.
  - B1. For employees hired on or after July 1, 2007 and before July 1, 2011, the CCPS subsidy will be based on years of service. CCPS will subsidize 5% of health insurance costs for each year of service with CCPS upon retirement. The table below outlines this subsidy plan.

Years of Service	Health Insurance Subsidy	Years of Service	Health Insurance Subsidy
1	0.0%	16	75%
2	0.0%	17	75%
3	0.0%	18	75%
4	0.0%	19	75%
5	0.0%	20	75%
6	30%	21	75%
7	35%	22	75%
8	40%	23	75%
9	45%	24	75%
10	50%	25	75%
11	55%	26	75%
12	60%	27	75%
13	65%	28	75%
14	70%	29	75%
15	75%	30	75%

CCPS will subsidize 30% of health insurance costs for employees on ordinary or accidental disability retirement with less than 6 years of service with CCPS.

B2. For employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, the CCPS subsidy will be based on years of service. CCPS will subsidize 5% of health insurance costs for each year of service with CCPS upon retirement. The table below outlines this subsidy plan.

Years of Service	Health Insurance Subsidy	Years of Service	Health Insurance Subsidy
1	0.0%	16	75%
2	0.0%	17	75%
3	0.0%	18	75%
4	0.0%	19	75%
5	0.0%	20	75%
6	0.0%	21	75%
7	0.0%	22	75%
8	0.0%	23	75%
9	0.0%	24	75%
10	50%	25	75%
11	55%	26	75%
12	60%	27	75%
13	65%	28	75%
14	70%	29	75%
15	75%	30	75%

CCPS will subsidize 50% of health insurance costs for employees on ordinary or accidental disability retirement with less than 10 years of service with CCPS.

- C. The insurance program is not available for those past or present employees who leave the employment of CCPS after ten (10) years and vest their retirement contributions. The only exceptions are those employees who have left with twenty- five years of creditable service and no less than the last five years of that service with CCPS shall be allowed to continue their coverage at no cost to CCPS.
- D. Retirees' insurance coverage at the age of 65 will be converted to the appropriate CCPS program.
- E. Premium contributions for retirees shall be deducted from their monthly pension check issued by the Maryland Retirement Systems. If the premium cost exceeds the amount of the retirees' pension check, the retiree must pay the difference two months in advance to Calvert County Public Schools.
- F. If a retired employee or a current employee who retires, declines to join, defaults on premium, or drops coverage, they will no longer be eligible for CCPS' insurance programs.
- G. In the event of the death of the employee, the spouse may convert to private coverage pursuant to the provisions of the respective insurance carriers.
- H. In the event of a health care premium holiday, retired members of any health care plan shall receive the premium holiday.

- 22.10 CCPS will reimburse teachers, (including those holding professional certificates) at a rate of up to \$3,500 per school year for the following:
  - A. Satisfactorily completed course work with a grade of "B" or better, provided the courses have been approved in advance by the Director of Human Resources or designee. Course reimbursement shall apply only leading to the obtainment of the Advanced Professional Certificate and/or Master's Degree or for certificate renewal. In no case, however, shall a teacher be reimbursed for more than the actual tuition cost per credit hour.
  - B. CCPS will develop a process in conjunction with the Maryland State Department of Education for prepayment or reimbursement for teachers pursuing National Board Certification (NBC) or Maintenance of Certification (MOC) provided teachers meet the established registration deadlines.\*
  - C. CCPS will reimburse teachers for established registration fees for NBC or MOC annually. Teachers who do not attempt the component within the required timeline will be required to repay CCPS for any fee payments received.\*
  - D. Teachers who receive payment for component fees associated with the NBC process who do not attempt the component within the required timeline will be required to repay CCPS for any received fee payments via direct payment to MSDE.\*

The maximum annual reimbursement shall be \$3,500 for a teacher per school year. With the exception of extenuating circumstances, teachers who receive tuition reimbursement and leave employment within one (1) year of receiving reimbursement shall be required to repay the monies received. Such teachers may pay monies owed directly or they may have the amount deducted from their last paycheck. The entire obligation must be satisfied within six (6) months of the employee leaving CCPS.

- 22.11 CCPS will provide teachers with an official employment identification card that will be displayed on their person during the contractual workday. Replacement charge shall not exceed the actual replacement cost of the official employment identification card.
- 22.12 Members of the bargaining unit who reside outside of Calvert County shall have the right to enroll their child or children in accordance with Calvert County Public Schools policies at 35% of the applicable Board approved tuition rate.

<sup>\*</sup>Unless there are legislative and/or regulatory changes

#### **Article 23 General Provisions**

- If any provision of this Agreement or any application thereof to any teacher or group of teachers is held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision or application will not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications will continue in full force and effect. The parties will meet not later than fifteen (15) days after any such holding for the purpose of renegotiating the provisions affected.
- 23.2 The Public School Laws of Maryland shall be followed if the parties reach impasse in negotiations.
- 23.3 This Agreement will be made available on Calvertnet. Teachers may request a paper copy of this Agreement from Calvert County Public Schools (CCPS).
- No later than November 15<sup>th</sup> of the final year of this Agreement, the parties shall begin good-faith negotiations for the purpose of entering into a successor agreement.
- 23.5 This Agreement constitutes the full and final agreement between the parties hereto on all matters within the scope of collective bargaining. The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement constitute the full and complete understanding and commitment between the Board and CEA on all matters.

### **Article 24 Duration**

24.1

June 30, 2028.

The provisions of this agreement shall become effective July 1, 2024 and shall remain in effect until

#### **Article 25 Salary**

- 25.1 Tenured teachers, who are subject to a reduction in force in a school year and are recalled pursuant to Article 8.7D, shall have the option to return to the Traditional Salary Schedule if not previously on the Career Ladder.
- 25.2 Increments are based upon advancement in step or interval on the schedule and shall be earned by teachers whose certificates are rated first class and whose end of year evaluation is rated effective or highly effective in accordance with Article 9 Teacher Evaluation. Teachers may advance one (1) step or interval at a minimum during any school year.
- 25.3 Certificated employees hired prior to July 1, 2024, who opt out of the Career Ladder or RSP Salary Scale and complete their Masters +30 or Doctorate degree prior to July 1, 2026 shall:
  - A. Teachers will be placed on Scale 5 requiring an Advanced Professional Certificate (APC) with a Master's degree +30 graduate credit hours not included in the Master's degree.
  - B. Teachers will be placed on Scale 7 requiring a Doctorate with an APC.
  - C. RSPs will be placed on Scale 10 requiring a Master's degree +30 graduate credit hours not included in the Master's degree.
  - D. RSPs will be placed on Scale 11 requiring a Doctorate.
- 25.4 CCPS shall reimburse all members of the bargaining unit for the MSDE certification/re-certification fee and/or state approved equivalent licensure/certification fee.
- 25.5 Teachers obtaining a change in certification and/or education level and who submit all required paperwork will receive a salary adjustment as follows:

#### Earned APC or Master's Degree

- A. September 15 will receive full salary adjustment for that school year.
- B. January 30 will receive one-half salary adjustment for that school year.

#### **Earned Doctorate**

- A. September 15 will receive full salary adjustment for that school year.
- B. January 30 will receive one-half salary adjustment for that school year.

#### Earned NBC (Career Ladder Level 3 or 4)

- A. When NBC is awarded in December, the employee will receive a salary adjustment of \$2,500 for the current fiscal year in which it was awarded.
- B. When MOC is awarded in December, the employee will receive a salary adjustment of \$2,000 for MOC 1, \$1,750 for MOC 2, and \$1,500 for MOC 3 for the current fiscal year in which it was awarded.
- C. Full salary adjustment effective the first pay of the following school year.

- D. Teachers on Salary Scale 7 who received the \$10,000 salary adjustment prior to July 1, 2024, and remain on the Traditional Salary Schedule will continue to receive the \$10,000 salary adjustment as long as their NBC certification is in good standing. If changes in the Maryland General Assembly reduce the amount provided, then Article 21.10 will apply.
- E. Teachers losing NBC due to involuntary or administrative scheduling in their final two years of NBC recertification shall be held harmless in a reduction in pay.
- 25.6 As teachers move to the Career Ladder from the Traditional Salary Schedule, starting from the lowest step, vacant steps will no longer be active and will be phased out.

#### For 2024-2025†:

#### **Teachers on the Traditional Salary Schedule:**

- One (1) Step
- 1% COLA to Steps 25 31 of the Traditional Salary Scales 5 and 7 effective pays 13 -24
- 1% COLA to Steps 11 31 of the Traditional Salary Scale 11 effective pays 13 24

#### For 2025-2026<sup>†</sup>:

#### **Teachers on the Traditional Salary Schedule:**

- One (1) Step
- 1% COLA to Steps 26 31 of the Traditional Salary Scales 5 and 7 effective pays 1 12
- 1% COLA to Steps 26 31 of Scales 5 and 7 effective pays 13 24
- 1% COLA to Steps 12 31 of the Traditional Scale 11 effective pays 1 12
- 1% COLA to Steps 12 31 of Scale 11 effective pays 13 24

#### For 2026-2027<sup>†</sup>:

#### **Teachers on the Traditional Salary Schedule:**

- One (1) Step
- 2% COLA to Steps 27 31 of Scale 7
- 2% COLA to Steps 13 31 of Scale 11

#### For 2027-2028<sup>+</sup>:

#### **Teachers on the Traditional Salary Schedule:**

- One (1) Step
- 1.5% COLA to Steps 28 31 of Scale 7 effective pays 1 12
- 1.5% COLA to Steps 28 31 of Scale 7 effective pays 13 24
- 1.5% COLA to Steps 14 31 of Scale 11 effective pays 1 12
- 1.5% COLA to Steps 14 31 of Scale 11 effective pays 13 24

\*If the Calvert County Board of County Commissioners does not approve enough funds for the Board of Education to fully implement the negotiated agreement any year of the Agreement, the parties shall renegotiate Article 25 and Article 26 of the Agreement and any additional mutually agreed upon articles of the Agreement. Such renegotiations shall commence within ten (10) days after the Board of Education's receipt of the County's approved budget for the upcoming fiscal year. Any resolution reached through renegotiation shall constitute the final Agreement between the parties. In the absence of agreement, the Statute and any relevant decisions will control any further procedure. In the event that there is a reduction of funds that has caused renegotiations resulting in a reduction of a benefit previously negotiated, and subsequent non-restricted funds are appropriated by the County Commissioners and made available to the Board of Education during the fiscal year affected by such renegotiations, the Board of Education commits to use, to the extent practicable, said identified non-restricted County funds towards the restoration of the negotiated benefits that were previously reduced.

#### **Article 26 Career Ladder**

- All eligible Career Ladder Teachers and Related Service Providers (RSPs), as defined in the Addendum to Article 1, hired to begin on or after July 1, 2024, will be placed on the Career Ladder or Related Service Providers Scale.
  - A. Current teachers and RSPs who want to remain on the traditional salary schedule and not be placed on the Career Ladder or RSP Salary Scale must notify Human Resources within thirty (30) days of the ratification date of this negotiated agreement.
  - B. Teachers and RSPs who remain on the traditional salary schedule and who wish to move to the Career Ladder or RSP Salary Scale the following school year must notify Human Resources by February 1 of each year.
  - C. Human Resources will notify staff of the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scale opt-out option thirty (30) days and an additional reminder fifteen (15) days before the closing date. CCPS and CEA will hold a joint session to share information about the Career Ladder/RSP Salary Scale and opt-out process.
  - D. Placement on the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scale is permanent and irrevocable after July 1, 2025.
- 26.2 Level 1 Teachers: Teachers who have a Bachelor's Degree and either a provisional or standard professional certificate as issued by the Maryland State Department of Education (MSDE).
  - A. Teachers with a Provisional MSDE Certificate are not eligible to move to Level 2.
  - B. Teachers on Level 1 are eligible for course reimbursement as outlined in Article 22.10.
- 26.3 Level 2 Teachers: Teachers who have achieved a master's degree, or an Advanced Professional Certificate (APC) as issued by MSDE or meet the requirements of Level 1 and are pursuing a National Board Teacher Certification (NBC), Master's Degree, or an Advanced Professional Certificate (APC) as issued by MSDE.
  - A. Teachers on Level 2 are eligible for course reimbursement as outlined in Article 22.10, and the NBC pre-payment program with MSDE.
- 26.4 Level 3 Teachers: Teachers who meet the requirements of Level 2 and have earned their NBC or a qualified master's degree in their content area where no NBC is available.
  - A. Teachers on Level 3 are eligible for course reimbursement as outlined in Article 22.10, and the NBC pre-payment program with MSDE for Maintenance of Certification (MOC).
  - B. Teachers on Level 3 who do not maintain an NBC will have their current salary deducted pursuant to their NBC salary increases received at the beginning of the next school year and transferred to the same interval on Level 2.
  - C. Teachers on Level 3 who do not declare their intention to renew their NBC by February of their 5<sup>th</sup> year of certification/recertification, will have their current salary deducted pursuant to their NBC salary increases received at the beginning of the next school year; and will be transferred to the same interval on Level 2.

- 26.5 Level 4 Teachers: Teachers who meet the requirements of Level 3, and who are hired into teacher leadership positions.
  - A. Teachers on Level 4 are eligible for course reimbursement as outlined in Article 22.10, and the NBC pre-payment program with MSDE for Maintenance of Certification (MOC).
  - B. Teachers on Level 4 who do not maintain an NBC will have their current salary deducted pursuant to their NBC salary increases received at the beginning of the next school year; and will be transferred to the same interval on Level 2.
  - C. Teachers on Level 4 who do not declare their intention to renew their NBC by February of their 5<sup>th</sup> year of certification/recertification, will have their current salary deducted pursuant to their NBC salary increases received at the beginning of the next school year; and will be transferred to the same interval on Level 2.
- 26.6 Level 1 and Level 2 salary schedules will define the base salaries for Level 3 and Level 4 of the Career Ladder. Negotiated COLA salary increases will only be applied to Level 1 and 2 of the Career Ladder.
- 26.7 Teachers who earned NBC Maintenance of Certification (MOC) are eligible for placement on the Career Ladder commensurate with the following MOC increases: \$8,000 for MOC 1, \$7,000 for MOC 2, and \$6,000 for MOC 3.\*
- Teachers who earned their NBC prior to June 30, 2024, and whose position is identified in Addendum 1 to Article 1 as ineligible for Level 3 of the Career Ladder, shall receive a \$2,500 salary adjustment.
- 26.9 If MSDE and/or CCPS identifies low-performing schools, Level 3 teachers within identified schools will earn a pensionable \$7,000 annual salary increase effective the first pay of the following school year.\*

#### 26.10 Placement on the Career Ladder

#### A. New Teachers:

1. Teachers will be placed on the Career Ladder Salary Scale based on their degree and certification.

#### B. Current CCPS Teachers:

- 1. Teachers who began work in CCPS on or before February 1, 2024, will receive a step on the June 30<sup>th</sup> salary schedule, be placed on Level 1, 2 or 3 based on their degree and certification and rounded up to the salary on the nearest interval on the Career Ladder.
- 2. Teachers who began work in CCPS after February 1, 2024, will be placed on Level 1, 2 or 3 based on their degree and certification and rounded up to the salary on the nearest interval.

#### C. Teachers new to CCPS with Experience:

- 1. For the duration of this contract, teachers will be placed on the Career Ladder as follows:
  - a. Interval A One to five years of experience
  - b. Interval B Six years of experience
  - c. Interval C Seven years of experience
  - d. Interval D Eight years of experience
  - e. Interval E Nine to Ten years of experience
  - f. Interval F Eleven years of experience
  - g. Interval G Twelve years of experience
  - h. Interval H Thirteen years of experience
  - i. Interval I Fourteen years of experience
  - j. Interval J Fifteen years of experience
  - k. Interval K Sixteen years of experience
  - 1. Interval L Seventeen years of experience
  - m. Interval M Eighteen to Nineteen years of experience
  - n. Interval N Twenty to Twenty-one years of experience
  - o. Interval O Twenty-two to Twenty-four years of experience
  - p. Interval P Twenty-five to Twenty-six years of experience
  - q. Interval Q Twenty-seven to Twenty-nine years of experience
  - r. Interval R Thirty+ years of experience

#### 26.11 Placement on the Related Service Provider Scale

#### A. New RSPs:

1. Will be placed on Interval A of the RSP Salary Scale.

#### B. Current CCPS RSPs:

- 1. RSPs who began work in CCPS on or before February 1, 2024, will receive a step on the June 30<sup>th</sup> salary schedule, and will be rounded up to the salary on the nearest Interval on the RSP Salary Scale.
- 2. RSPs who began work in CCPS on or before February 1, 2024, who are currently placed on Scale 9 and who have earned a 60-credit specialist degree will be placed as follows:
  - a. Placed on Scale 10 at the current salary step
  - b. Move one step on Scale 10
  - c. Placed on the RSP Salary Scale at the closest salary Interval, rounded up to the salary on the nearest Interval.
- 3. RSPs who began work in CCPS after February 1, 2024, will be placed on the RSP Salary Scale based on their degree and certification and rounded up to the salary on the nearest Interval.

- C. Related Service Providers new to CCPS with experience
  - 1. For the duration of this contract, Relate Service Providers will be placed on the RSP Salary Scale as follows:
    - a. Interval A One to two years of experience
    - b. Interval B Three to Four years of experience
    - c. Interval C Five years of experience
    - d. Interval D Six years of experience
    - e. Interval E Seven years of experience
    - f. Interval F Eight years of experience
    - g. Interval G Nine to Ten years of experience
    - h. Interval H Eleven years of experience
    - i. Interval I Twelve years of experience
    - j. Interval J Thirteen years of experience
    - k. Interval K Fourteen years of experience
    - 1. Interval L Fifteen years of experience
    - m. Interval M Sixteen to Seventeen years of experience
    - n. Interval N Eighteen years of experience
    - o. Interval O Nineteen years of experience
    - p. Interval P Twenty to Twenty-one years of experience
    - q. Interval Q Twenty-two years of experience
    - r. Interval R Twenty-three to Twenty-four years of experience
    - s. Interval S Twenty-five to Twenty-seven years of experience
    - t. Interval T Twenty-eight to Twenty-nine years of experience
    - u. Interval U Thirty+ years of experience
- 26.12 Teachers and RSPs not identified in Article 25.3 earning a doctorate degree after June 30, 2024, will earn a pensionable \$3,000 salary adjustment.
- 26.13 Provisional teachers hired for Career Technology Education (CTE) positions at the Career Technology Academy will be placed on Level 1 of the Career Ladder and shall be awarded years of related work experience in accordance with 26.10.
- 26.14 To qualify for the NBC salary increase or qualified masters increase, teachers must teach at least 50% of classes within the NBC certification area\* and in accordance with Article 5.3.

<sup>\*</sup>Unless there are legislative and/or regulatory changes

#### For 2024-2025†:

### Teachers on the Career Ladder will be placed according to Article 26.10 RSPs on the RSP Salary Scale will be placed according to Article 26.11

• 1% COLA to Levels 1 and 2 of the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scales effective pays 13 – 24

#### For 2025-2026<sup>†</sup>:

#### **Teachers on the Career Ladder and RSPs on the RSP Salary Scale:**

- One (1) Interval
- 1% COLA to Levels 1 and 2 of the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scales effective pays 1 12
- 1% COLA to Levels 1 and 2 of the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scales effective pays 13 24

#### For 2026-2027<sup>†</sup>:

#### **Teachers on the Career Ladder and RSPs on the RSP Salary Scale:**

- One (1) Interval
- 2% COLA to Levels 1 and 2 of the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scales

#### For 2027-2028<sup>†</sup>:

#### Teachers on the Career Ladder and RSPs on the RSP Salary Scale:

- One (1) Interval
- 1.5% COLA to Levels 1 and 2 of the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scales effective pays 1 12
- 1.5% COLA to Levels 1 and 2 of the Career Ladder and RSP Salary Scales effective pays 13 24

†If the Calvert County Board of County Commissioners does not approve enough funds for the Board of Education to fully implement the negotiated agreement any year of the Agreement, the parties shall renegotiate Article 25 and Article 26 of the Agreement and any additional mutually agreed upon articles of the Agreement. Such renegotiations shall commence within ten (10) days after the Board of Education's receipt of the County's approved budget for the upcoming fiscal year. Any resolution reached through renegotiation shall constitute the final Agreement between the parties. In the absence of agreement, the Statute and any relevant decisions will control any further procedure.

In the event that there is a reduction of funds that has caused renegotiations resulting in a reduction of a benefit previously negotiated, and subsequent non-restricted funds are appropriated by the County Commissioners and made available to the Board of Education during the fiscal year affected by such renegotiations, the Board of Education commits to use, to the extent practicable, said identified non-restricted County funds towards the restoration of the negotiated benefits that were previously reduced.

Appendix A Career Ladder Salary Schedule 2024 - 2025

	Career Ladder															
		Lev	rel 1		Lev	rel 2				Level 3				Related Service		
		State Certif	ied Teacher		Teacher Pursuing NBC or Teacher with NBC or Qualified Masters*									Providers		
Interval		** Standard		** Standard		** Standard		ADC:	Ba	chelors and S	<b>₽</b> C		APC or	Masters		
	**P	rov.		ssional	Bachelors and SPC	APC or Masters	NBC	MOC 1	MOC 2	NBC	MOC 1	MOC 2	MOC 3	R.SP		
			Certificate (SPC)				\$10,000	\$8,000	\$7,000	\$10,000	\$8,000	\$7,000	\$6,000			
A	\$54,	000	\$61,		\$61,000	\$65,500	\$71,000	\$79,000	\$86,000	\$75,500	\$83,500	\$90,500	\$96,500	\$67,465		
В	\$55,		\$63,		\$63,440	\$67,793	\$73,440	\$81,440	\$88,440	\$77,793	\$85,793	\$92,793	\$98,793	\$69,827		
C	\$57,	289	\$65,	978	\$65,978	\$70,165	\$75,978	\$83,978	\$90,978	\$80,165	\$88,165	\$95,165	\$101,165	\$72,270		
D	\$59,		\$68,		\$68,617	\$72,621	\$78,617	\$86,617	\$93,617	\$82,621	\$90,621	\$97,621	\$103,621	\$74,800		
E	\$60,		\$70,		\$70,675	\$75,163	\$80,675	\$88,675	\$95,675	\$85,163	\$93,163	\$100,163	\$106,163	\$77,418		
F	\$62,	601	\$72,	795	\$72,795	\$77,418	\$82,795	\$90,795	\$97,795	\$87,418	\$95,418	\$102,418	\$108,418	\$79,741		
G	\$64,		\$74,		\$74,979	\$79,740	\$84,979	\$92,979	\$99,979	\$89,740	\$97,740	\$104,740	\$110,740	\$82,132		
H	\$66,		\$76,479		\$76,479	\$82,132	\$86,479	\$94,479	\$101,479	\$92,132	\$100,132	\$107,132	\$113,132	\$84,596		
I	\$68,	406	\$78,008		\$78,008	\$84,596	\$88,008	\$96,008	\$103,008	\$94,596	\$102,596	\$109,596	\$115,596	\$87,134		
J	\$70,	458	\$79,	569	\$79,569	\$87,134	\$89,569	\$97,569	\$104,569	\$97,134	\$105,134	\$112,134	\$118,134	\$89,748		
K	\$70,458	\$72,219	\$79,569	\$80,762	\$79,569	\$89,313				\$99,313	\$107,313	\$114,313	\$120,313	\$91,992		
L	\$70,458	\$74,025	\$79,569	\$81,974	\$79,569	\$91,545				\$101,545	\$109,545	\$116,545	\$122,545	\$94,291		
M	\$70,458	\$75,875	\$79,569	\$83,203	\$79,569	\$93,834				\$103,834	\$111,834	\$118,834	\$124,834	\$96,649		
N	\$70,458	\$77,772	\$79,569	\$84,451	\$79,569	\$96,180				\$106,180	\$114,180	\$121,180	\$127,180	\$99,065		
0	\$70,458	\$79,716	\$79,569	\$85,718	\$79,569	\$98,584				\$108,584	\$116,584	\$123,584	\$129,584	\$101,542		
P	\$70,458	\$81,709	\$79,569	\$87,004	\$79,569	\$101,049				\$111,049	\$119,049	\$126,049	\$132,049	\$104,080		
Q	\$70,458	\$83,752	\$79,569	\$88,309	\$79,569	\$103,575				\$113,575	\$121,575	\$128,575	\$134,575	\$106,682		
R	\$70,458	\$85,427	\$79,569	\$89,634	\$79,569	\$106,165				\$116,165	\$124,165	\$131,165	\$137,165	\$109,350		
S	\$70,458	\$87,136	\$79,569	\$90,978	\$79,569	\$108,819				\$118,819	\$126,819	\$133,819	\$139,819	\$112,084		
T	\$70,458	\$88,878	\$79,569	\$92,343	\$79,569	\$110,995				\$120,995	\$128,995	\$135,995	\$141,995	\$114,325		
U	\$70,458	\$90,656	\$79,569	\$93,728	\$79,569	\$113,215	\$123,215 \$131,215 \$138,215 \$144,215 \$							\$116,611		
V	\$70,458	\$92,469	\$79,569	\$95,134	\$79,569	\$115,479				\$125,479	\$133,479	\$140,479	\$146,479	\$118,943		
					* in C	ontent Are	a (No NBC	Available)								
			**Gre	en Cells Or	nly Apply to	CTE teache	ers at the C	areer and 1	Technology	Academy						

June~30,~2024~Salary~Schedule~that~will~be~used~for~determining~placement~on~the~Career~Ladder~for~the~2024-2025~school~year.

	Salary Schedule for all bargaining unit members for FY24 pays 13-24																
	2023-24 Regular Salary Scale for Teachers Holding Degrees										2023-24 Salary Scale for School Psychologist, School Social Worker, Audiologist, Occupational Therapist, Physical Therapist						orker,
	9	Scale 1		Scale 2		Scale 3		Scale 5		Scale 7	1	Г	Scale 9	5	cale 10	5	cale 11
Step	Pro	ovisional	В	achelors	ΑP	C/Masters	M	asters+30	D	octorate		ı	Masters	Ма	asters+30	D	octorate
1	\$	42,820	\$	54,373	\$	58,141	\$	62,448	\$	74,772	1	\$	59,885	\$	64,321	\$	77,015
2	\$	44,575	\$	55,493	\$	59,617	\$	64,130	\$	75,849	1	\$	61,406	\$	66,054	\$	78,125
3	\$	46,402	\$	57,153	\$	61,091	\$	65,811	\$	76,926	1	\$	62,924	\$	67,786	\$	79,234
4	\$	48,212	\$	58,812	\$	62,566	\$	67,494	\$	78,123	1	\$	64,444	\$	69,518	\$	80,467
5	\$	50,093	\$	60,472	\$	64,042	\$	69,175	\$	79,200		\$	65,963	\$	71,250	\$	81,576
6	\$	51,996	\$	61,998	\$	65,378	\$	70,703	\$	81,677		\$	67,339	\$	72,825	\$	84,128
7	\$	53,971	\$	64,600	\$	67,664	\$	72,825	\$	84,535	1	\$	69,694	\$	75,009	\$	87,071
8	\$	55,996	\$	67,184	\$	70,034	\$	75,009	\$	87,495	1	\$	72,135	\$	77,260	\$	90,119
9	\$	58,097	\$	69,872	\$	72,486	\$	77,260	\$	89,681	1	\$	74,661	\$	79,577	\$	92,372
10	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	75,022	\$	79,576	\$	91,923	1	\$	77,272	\$	81,963	\$	94,681
11	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	77,273	\$	81,567	\$	94,221	1	\$	79,592	\$	84,014	\$	97,048
12	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	79,591	\$	83,607	\$	96,577	1	\$	81,979	\$	86,115	\$	99,475
13	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	81,978	\$	85,695	\$	98,510	1	\$	84,437	\$	88,266	\$	101,465
14	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	84,438	\$	87,839	\$	100,478	1	\$	86,971	\$	90,474	\$	103,492
15	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	86,971	\$	90,034	\$	102,488	1	\$	89,581	\$	92,735	\$	105,563
16	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	88,710	\$	91,835	\$	104,537	1	\$	91,371	\$	94,590	\$	107,673
17	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	90,484	\$	93,671	\$	105,845	1	\$	93,198	\$	96,481	\$	109,021
18	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	92,295	\$	95,545	\$	107,166	1	\$	95,063	\$	98,412	\$	110,381
19	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	94,139	\$	97,456	\$	108,507	1	\$	96,963	\$	100,380	\$	111,763
20	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	96,024	\$	99,405	\$	109,592	1	\$	98,904	\$	102,387	\$	112,880
21	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	96,983	\$	100,896	\$	110,688	1	\$	99,892	\$	103,922	\$	114,009
22	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	97,953	\$	102,410	\$	111,795	1	\$	100,892	\$	105,483	\$	115,148
23	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	98,933	\$	103,454	\$	112,913		\$	101,901	\$	106,557	\$	116,301
24	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	99,922	\$	104,509	\$	114,042	1	\$	102,920	\$	107,645	\$	117,463
25	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	100,920	\$	105,564	\$	115,183	1	\$	103,948	\$	108,731	\$	118,638
26	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	101,678	\$	106,631	\$	116,334	1	\$	104,728	\$	109,830	\$	119,824
27	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	102,696	\$	107,697	\$	117,498	1	\$	105,777	\$	110,928	\$	121,023
28	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	103,723	\$	108,775	\$	118,673		\$	106,834	\$	112,038	\$	122,233
29	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	104,759	\$	109,863	\$	119,859		\$	107,902	\$	113,159	\$	123,455
30	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	105,808	\$	110,961	\$	121,059		\$	108,983	\$	114,290	\$	124,690
31	\$	60,274	\$	72,668	\$	106,865	\$	112,071	\$	122,270		\$	110,071	\$	115,433	\$	125,938
	_		_	,	_		_	,	_			Ė		_	.,	_	-2

Scale 1 Provisional

TRANSITION	4

Current Step 2023-2024	Current February 2024 Provisional Salary	2024-25 Interval	2024-25 Career Ladder Provision Salary Next Year Pays 1 - 12
1	42,820	А	\$54,000
2	44,575	А	\$54,000
3	46,402	A	\$54,000
4	48,212	А	\$54,000
5	50,093	A	\$54,000
6	51,996	А	\$54,000
7	53,971	С	\$57, 289
8	55,996	D	\$59 <i>,</i> 007
9	58,097	E	\$60,777
10	60,274	E	\$60,777
11	60,274	E	\$60,777
12	60,274	E	\$60,777
13	60,274	Е	\$60,777
14	60,274	E	\$60,777
15	60,274	Е	\$60,777
16	60,274	E	\$60,777
17	60,274	Е	\$60,777
18	60,274	E	\$60,777
19	60,274	E	\$60,777
20	60,274	E	\$60,777
21	60,274	Е	\$60,777
22	60,274	E	\$60,777
23	60,274	Е	\$60,777
24	60,274	Е	\$60,777
25	60,274	Е	\$60,777
26	60,274	E	\$60,777
27	60,274	E	\$60,777
28	60,274	E	\$60,777
29	60,274	E	\$60,777
30	60,274	E	\$60,777
31	60,274	Е	\$60,777

#### **Career Ladder Level 1 Provisional Certificate** \*Green Cells for CTE ONLY 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 1% Feb 26 1.5% Feb 28 1% Feb 25 1% Aug 25 2% Aug 26 1.5% Aug 27 \$56,749 \$57,600 \$54,000 \$54,540 \$55,085 \$55,636 \$58,464 \$55,620 \$56,176 \$56,738 \$57,305 \$58,451 \$59,328 \$60,218 В \$57,289 \$57,862 \$58,441 \$59,025 \$60,205 \$61,108 \$62,025 \$59,007 \$59,597 \$60,193 \$60,795 \$62,941 \$63,885 D \$62,011 \$62,619 Е \$60,777 \$61,385 \$61,999 \$63,871 \$64,829 \$65,801 F \$62,601 \$63,227 \$63,859 \$64,498 \$65,788 \$66,775 \$67,776 \$64,479 \$65,124 \$65,775 \$66,433 \$67,761 \$68,778 \$69,810 \$67,077 Н \$66,413 \$67,748 \$68,425 \$69,794 \$70,841 \$71,903 \$72,967 \$68,406 \$69,090 \$69,781 \$70,479 \$71,888 \$74,061 \$70,458 \$71,874 \$71,163 \$72,593 \$74,045 \$75,155 \$76,283 \$72,219 \$72,941 \$73,671 \$74,407 \$75,895 \$77,034 \$78,189 \$74.025 \$74,765 \$75,513 \$76,268 \$77,793 \$78,960 \$80,145 M \$75,875 \$76,634 \$77,400 \$78,174 \$79,738 \$80,934 \$82,148 N \$77,772 \$78,550 \$79,335 \$80,129 \$81,731 \$82,957 \$84,201 0 \$79,716 \$80,513 \$81,318 \$82,131 \$83,774 \$85,031 \$86,306 \$81,709 \$82,526 \$83,351 \$84,185 \$85,869 \$87,157 \$88,464 Q \$83,752 \$84,590 \$85,435 \$86,290 \$89,336 \$90,676 \$88,016 \$85,427 \$86,281 \$87,144 \$89,776 \$91,122 \$92,489 \$88,016 \$87,136 \$88,007 \$88,887 \$92,945 \$94,340 S \$89,776 \$91,572 \$90,664 \$88,878 \$89,767 \$91,571 \$93,403 \$94,804 \$96,226 \$90,656 \$91,563 \$92,478 \$93,403 \$95,271 \$96,700 \$98,151

\$95,271

\$97,176

\$98,634

\$100,113

\$92,469

\$93,394

\$94,328

### **Career Ladder Level 1 Standard Professional Certificate (SPC)**

202	4 202E								*Green Cells for CTE <b>ONLY</b>								
	2024-2025			2025-2026			2026-2027		2027-2028								
	1% Feb 25		1% Aug 25	1% Feb 26		2% Aug 26		1.5% Aug 27	1.5% Feb 28								
\$61,000	\$61,610		\$62,226	\$62,848		\$64,105		\$65,067	\$66,043								
\$63,440	\$64,074		\$64,715	\$65,362		\$66,670		\$67,670	\$68,685								
\$65,978	\$66,638		\$67,304	\$67,977		\$69,337		\$70,377	\$71,432								
\$68,617	\$69,303		\$69,996	\$70,696		\$72,110		\$73,192	\$74,290								
\$70,675	\$71,382		\$72,096	\$72,817		\$74,273		\$75,387	\$76,518								
\$72,795	\$73,523		\$74,258	\$75,001		\$76,501		\$77,648	\$78,813								
\$74,979	\$75,729		\$76,486	\$77,251		\$78,796		\$79,978	\$81,178								
\$76,479	\$77,244		\$78,016	\$78,796		\$80,372		\$81,578	\$82,802								
\$78,008	\$78,788		\$79,576	\$80,372		\$81,979		\$83,209	\$84,457								
\$79,569	\$80,365		\$81,168	\$81,980		\$83,620		\$84,874	\$86,147								
\$80,762	\$81,570		\$82,385	\$83,209		\$84,873		\$86,146	\$87,439								
\$81,974	\$82,794		\$83,622	\$84,458		\$86,147		\$87,439	\$88,751								
\$83,203	\$84,035		\$84,875	\$85,724		\$87,439		\$88,750	\$90,081								
\$84,451	\$85,296		\$86,148	\$87,010		\$88,750		\$90,081	\$91,433								
\$85,718	\$86,575		\$87,441	\$88,315		\$90,082		\$91,433	\$92,804								
\$87,004	\$87,874		\$88,753	\$89,640		\$91,433		\$92,805	\$94,197								
\$88,309	\$89,192		\$90,084	\$90,985		\$92,805		\$94,197	\$95,610								
\$89,634	\$90,530		\$91,436	\$92,350		\$94,197		\$95,610	\$97,044								
\$90,978	\$91,888		\$92,807	\$93,735		\$95,609		\$97,044	\$98,499								
\$92,343	\$93,266		\$94,199	\$95,141		\$97,044		\$98,500	\$99,977								
\$93,728	\$94,665		\$95,612	\$96,568		\$98,499		\$99,977	\$101,477								
\$95,134	\$96,085		\$97,046	\$98,017		\$99,977		\$101,477	\$102,999								
07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 0	663,440 665,978 668,617 670,675 672,795 674,979 676,479 678,008 679,569 680,762 681,974 683,203 684,451 685,718 685,718 687,004 688,309 689,634 690,978 692,343	\$61,000 \$61,610 \$63,440 \$64,074 \$65,978 \$66,638 \$68,617 \$69,303 \$70,675 \$71,382 \$72,795 \$73,523 \$74,979 \$75,729 \$76,479 \$77,244 \$78,008 \$78,788 \$79,569 \$80,365 \$80,762 \$81,570 \$81,974 \$82,794 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$84,451 \$85,296 \$85,718 \$86,575 \$87,004 \$87,874 \$88,309 \$89,192 \$89,634 \$90,530 \$90,978 \$91,888 \$92,343 \$93,266 \$93,728 \$94,665	\$61,000 \$61,610 \$63,440 \$64,074 \$65,978 \$66,638 \$68,617 \$69,303 \$70,675 \$71,382 \$72,795 \$73,523 \$74,979 \$75,729 \$76,479 \$77,244 \$78,008 \$78,788 \$79,569 \$80,365 \$80,762 \$81,570 \$81,974 \$82,794 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$84,451 \$85,296 \$85,718 \$86,575 \$87,004 \$87,874 \$88,309 \$89,192 \$89,634 \$90,530 \$90,978 \$91,888 \$92,343 \$93,266 \$93,728 \$94,665	\$61,000 \$61,610 \$62,226 \$63,440 \$64,074 \$64,715 \$65,978 \$66,638 \$67,304 \$69,996 \$70,675 \$71,382 \$72,096 \$72,795 \$73,523 \$74,258 \$74,979 \$75,729 \$76,486 \$78,008 \$78,788 \$79,576 \$80,762 \$81,570 \$82,385 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$84,451 \$85,296 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$84,451 \$85,296 \$85,718 \$86,575 \$87,441 \$88,753 \$89,634 \$90,530 \$91,436 \$90,978 \$91,888 \$92,807 \$93,728 \$94,665 \$95,612	661,000         \$61,610         \$62,226         \$62,848           663,440         \$64,074         \$64,715         \$65,362           665,978         \$66,638         \$67,304         \$67,977           668,617         \$69,303         \$69,996         \$70,696           670,675         \$71,382         \$72,096         \$72,817           672,795         \$73,523         \$74,258         \$75,001           674,979         \$75,729         \$76,486         \$77,251           676,479         \$77,244         \$78,016         \$78,796           678,008         \$78,788         \$79,576         \$80,372           679,569         \$80,365         \$81,168         \$81,980           681,974         \$82,794         \$83,622         \$84,458           683,203         \$84,035         \$84,875         \$85,724           683,718         \$86,575         \$87,441         \$88,315           687,004         \$87,874         \$88,753         \$89,640           688,309         \$89,192         \$90,084         \$90,985           689,634         \$90,530         \$91,436         \$92,350           690,978         \$91,888         \$92,343         \$93,266         \$94,199	\$61,000 \$61,610 \$62,226 \$62,848 \$63,440 \$64,074 \$64,715 \$65,362 \$68,617 \$69,303 \$69,996 \$70,696 \$72,817 \$72,795 \$73,523 \$74,258 \$75,001 \$74,979 \$75,729 \$76,486 \$77,251 \$78,008 \$78,788 \$79,576 \$80,372 \$81,974 \$82,794 \$83,622 \$84,458 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$84,451 \$85,296 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$87,004 \$87,874 \$88,309 \$89,192 \$90,084 \$90,985 \$93,728 \$91,888 \$92,343 \$93,266 \$93,728 \$94,665 \$95,612 \$96,568	\$61,000 \$61,610 \$62,226 \$62,848 \$64,105 \$63,440 \$64,074 \$64,715 \$65,362 \$66,670 \$65,978 \$66,638 \$67,304 \$67,977 \$69,337 \$69,996 \$70,696 \$72,110 \$72,795 \$73,523 \$74,258 \$75,001 \$76,501 \$76,501 \$78,796 \$78,008 \$78,788 \$79,576 \$80,372 \$81,979 \$79,569 \$80,365 \$81,168 \$81,980 \$83,620 \$81,974 \$82,794 \$83,622 \$84,458 \$86,147 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$84,451 \$85,296 \$85,718 \$86,575 \$87,004 \$87,874 \$88,309 \$89,192 \$90,084 \$90,985 \$92,805 \$93,728 \$94,199 \$95,141 \$97,044 \$93,728 \$94,499 \$95,141 \$97,044 \$93,728 \$94,499	\$61,000 \$61,610 \$62,226 \$62,848 \$64,105 \$63,440 \$64,074 \$64,715 \$65,362 \$66,670 \$65,978 \$66,638 \$67,304 \$67,977 \$69,337 \$69,996 \$70,696 \$72,817 \$74,273 \$72,795 \$73,523 \$74,258 \$75,001 \$76,501 \$76,501 \$77,244 \$78,016 \$78,796 \$79,569 \$80,365 \$81,168 \$81,980 \$83,620 \$81,974 \$82,794 \$83,622 \$84,458 \$86,147 \$83,203 \$84,035 \$84,451 \$85,296 \$85,718 \$86,575 \$87,004 \$87,874 \$88,309 \$89,192 \$90,084 \$90,985 \$92,343 \$93,266 \$994,199 \$95,141 \$97,044 \$93,728 \$94,499	661,000         \$61,610         \$62,226         \$62,848         \$64,105         \$65,067           663,440         \$64,074         \$64,715         \$65,362         \$66,670         \$67,670           665,978         \$66,638         \$67,304         \$67,977         \$69,337         \$70,377           668,617         \$69,303         \$69,996         \$70,696         \$72,110         \$73,192           \$70,675         \$71,382         \$72,096         \$72,817         \$74,273         \$75,387           \$72,795         \$73,523         \$74,258         \$75,001         \$76,501         \$77,648           \$74,979         \$75,729         \$76,486         \$77,251         \$78,796         \$79,978           \$67,9569         \$80,365         \$81,168         \$81,980         \$83,620         \$84,874           \$80,762         \$81,570         \$82,385         \$83,209         \$84,873         \$86,146           \$81,974         \$82,794         \$83,622         \$84,458         \$86,147         \$87,439           \$83,203         \$84,035         \$86,148         \$87,010         \$88,753         \$89,644           \$85,718         \$86,575         \$87,441         \$88,315         \$90,082         \$91,433								

**Scale 2 Bachelors** 



Current Step 2023-2024	Current February 2024 Bachelors Salary	2024-25 Interval Equivalent	2024-25 Career Ladder Salary Next Year Pays 1 - 12
1	\$54,373	А	\$61,000
2	\$55,493	А	\$61,000
3	\$57,153	А	\$61,000
4	\$ 58,812	Α	\$61,000
5	\$ 60,472	В	\$63,440
6	\$ 61,998	С	\$65,978
7	\$ 64,600	D	\$68,617
8	\$ 67,184	Е	\$70,675
9	\$ 69,872	F	\$72,795
10	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
11	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
12	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
13	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
14	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
15	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
16	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
17	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
18	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
19	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
20	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
21	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
22	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
23	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
24	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
25	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
26	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
27	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
28	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
29	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
30	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795
31	\$ 72,668	F	\$72,795

	Career Ladder Level 2 Bachelors/SPC									
	2024-2025		2025-2026			2026-2027		2027-2028		
		1% Feb 25	1% Aug 25	1% Feb 26		2% Aug 26		1.5% Aug 27	1.5% Feb 28	
Α	\$61,000	\$61,610	\$62,226	\$62,848		\$64,105		\$65,067	\$66,043	
В	\$63,440	\$64,074	\$64,715	\$65,362		\$66,670		\$67,670	\$68,685	
С	\$65,978	\$66,638	\$67,304	\$67,977		\$69,337		\$70,377	\$71,432	
D	\$68,617	\$69,303	\$69,996	\$70,696		\$72,110		\$73,192	\$74,290	
E	\$70,675	\$71,382	\$72,096	\$72,817		\$74,273		\$75,387	\$76,518	
F	\$72,795	\$73,523	\$74,258	\$75,001		\$76,501		\$77 <i>,</i> 648	\$78,813	
G	\$74,979	\$75,729	\$76,486	\$77,251		\$78,796		\$79,978	\$81,178	
Н	\$76,479	\$77,244	\$78,016	\$78,796		\$80,372		\$81,578	\$82,802	
-	\$78,008	\$78,788	\$79,576	\$80,372		\$81 <i>,</i> 979		\$83,209	\$84,457	
J	\$79,569	\$80,365	\$81,168	\$81,980		\$83,620		\$84,874	\$86,147	
K										
L										
M										
N										
0										
P										
Q										
R										
S										
T U										
V										
V										

**Scale 3 APC/Masters** 



Current Step	Current February 2024	2024-25 Interval	2024-25 Career Ladder APC
2023-2024	APC/Masters Salary	Equivalent W/STEP	or Masters Salary Next Year
			Pays 1 - 12
1	\$58,141	Α	\$65,500
2	\$59,617	Α	\$65,500
3	\$61,091	Α	\$65,500
4	\$62,566	Α	\$65,500
5	\$64,042	A	\$65,500
6	\$65,378	В	\$67,793
7	\$67,664	С	\$70,165
8	\$70,034	D	\$72,621
9	\$72,486	E	\$75,163
10	\$75,022	F	\$77,418
11	\$77,273	G	\$79,740
12	\$79,591	Н	\$82,132
13	\$81,978	I	\$84,596
14	\$84,438	J	\$87,134
15	\$86,971	K	\$89,313
16	\$88,710	L	\$91 <i>,</i> 545
17	\$90,484	M	\$93,834
18	\$92,295	N	\$96,180
19	\$94,139	N	\$96,180
20	\$96,024	0	\$98,584
21	\$96,983	0	\$98,584
22	\$97,953	Р	\$101,049
23	\$98,933	Р	\$101,049
24	\$99,922	Р	\$101,049
25	\$100,920	Q	\$103,575
26	\$101,678	Q	\$103,575
27	\$102,696	R	\$106,165
28	\$103,723	R	\$106,165
29	\$104,759	R	\$106,165
30	\$105,808	S	\$108,819
31	\$106,865	S	\$108,819

	Career Ladder Level 2 APC/Masters									
	2024-2025			2025-2026			2026-2027		2027-	2028
		1% Feb 25		1% Aug 25	1% Feb 26		2% Aug 26		1.5% Aug 27	1.5% Feb 28
Α	\$65,500	\$66,155		\$66,817	\$67,485		\$68,834		\$69,867	\$70,915
В	\$67,793	\$68,471		\$69,156	\$69,847		\$71,244		\$72,313	\$73,397
С	\$70,165	\$70,867		\$71,575	\$72,291		\$73,737		\$74,843	\$75,966
D	\$72,621	\$73,347		\$74,081	\$74,821		\$76,318		\$77,463	\$78,625
Е	\$75,163	\$75,915		\$76,674	\$77,441		\$78,989		\$80,174	\$81,377
F	\$77,418	\$78,192		\$78,974	\$79,764		\$81,359		\$82,580	\$83,818
G	\$79,740	\$80,537		\$81,343	\$82,156		\$83,799		\$85,056	\$86,332
Н	\$82,132	\$82,953		\$83,783	\$84,621		\$86,313		\$87,608	\$88,922
1	\$84,596	\$85,442		\$86,296	\$87,159		\$88,903		\$90,236	\$91,590
J	\$87,134	\$88,005		\$88,885	\$89,774		\$91,570		\$92,943	\$94,337
K	\$89,313	\$90,206		\$91,108	\$92,019		\$93,860		\$95,268	\$96,697
L	\$91,545	\$92,460		\$93,385	\$94,319		\$96,205		\$97,648	\$99,113
M	\$93,834	\$94,772		\$95,720	\$96,677		\$98,611		\$100,090	\$101,591
N	\$96,180	\$97,142		\$98,113	\$99,094		\$101,076		\$102,592	\$104,131
0	\$98,584	\$99,570		\$100,566	\$101,571		\$103,603		\$105,157	\$106,734
P	\$101,049	\$102,059		\$103,080	\$104,111		\$106,193		\$107,786	\$109,403
Q	\$103,575	\$104,611		\$105,657	\$106,713		\$108,848		\$110,480	\$112,138
R	\$106,165	\$107,227		\$108,299	\$109,382		\$111,570		\$113,243	\$114,942
S	\$108,819	\$109,907		\$111,006	\$112,116		\$114,359		\$116,074	\$117,815
Т	\$110,995	\$112,105		\$113,226	\$114,358		\$116,645		\$118,395	\$120,171
U	\$113,215	\$114,347		\$115,491	\$116,646		\$118,978		\$120,763	\$122,575
V	\$115,479	\$116,634		\$117,800	\$118,978		\$121,358		\$123,178	\$125,026

Scale 5 Masters + 30



Current Step 2023-2024         Current February 2024 Masters +30 Salary         Equivalent W/ STEP         2024-25 Career Ladder Salary Next Year         Pays 1 - 12           1         \$62,448         A         \$65,500           2         \$64,130         B         \$67,793           3         \$65,811         B         \$67,793           4         \$67,494         C         \$70,165           5         \$69,175         D         \$72,621           6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$77,440           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$9				
1         \$62,448         A         \$65,500           2         \$64,130         B         \$67,793           3         \$65,811         B         \$67,793           4         \$67,494         C         \$70,165           5         \$69,175         D         \$72,621           6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049		-		
1         \$62,448         A         \$65,500           2         \$64,130         B         \$67,793           3         \$65,811         B         \$67,793           4         \$67,494         C         \$70,165           5         \$69,175         D         \$72,621           6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049	2023-2024	Masters +30 Salary	Equivalent W/ STEP	Ladder Salary Next
2         \$64,130         B         \$67,793           3         \$65,811         B         \$67,793           4         \$67,494         C         \$70,165           5         \$69,175         D         \$72,621           6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$100,499 <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Year Pays 1 - 12</th>				Year Pays 1 - 12
3         \$65,811         B         \$67,793           4         \$67,494         C         \$70,165           5         \$69,175         D         \$72,621           6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$96,180           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575     <	1	\$62,448	А	\$65,500
4         \$67,494         C         \$70,165           5         \$69,175         D         \$72,621           6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575           22         \$102,410         Q         \$105,575	2	\$64,130	В	\$67,793
5         \$69,175         D         \$72,621           6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575           22         \$102,410         Q         \$103,575           23         \$103,454         R         \$106,165	3	\$65,811	В	\$67,793
6         \$70,703         E         \$75,163           7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575           22         \$102,410         Q         \$103,575           23         \$103,454         R         \$106,165           24         \$104,509         R         \$106,165 </th <th>4</th> <th>\$67,494</th> <th>С</th> <th>\$70,165</th>	4	\$67,494	С	\$70,165
7         \$72,825         E         \$75,163           8         \$75,009         F         \$77,418           9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575           22         \$102,410         Q         \$103,575           23         \$103,454         R         \$106,165           24         \$104,509         R         \$106,165           25         \$105,564         S         \$108,81	5	\$69,175	D	\$72,621
8       \$75,009       F       \$77,418         9       \$77,260       G       \$79,740         10       \$79,576       H       \$82,132         11       \$81,567       I       \$84,596         12       \$83,607       J       \$87,134         13       \$85,695       K       \$89,313         14       \$87,839       L       \$91,545         15       \$90,034       M       \$93,834         16       \$91,835       M       \$93,834         17       \$93,671       N       \$96,180         18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         2	6	\$70,703	E	\$75,163
9         \$77,260         G         \$79,740           10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575           22         \$102,410         Q         \$103,575           23         \$103,454         R         \$106,165           24         \$104,509         R         \$106,165           25         \$105,564         S         \$108,819           26         \$106,631         S         \$108,819           27         \$107,697         S         \$	7	\$72,825	Е	\$75,163
10         \$79,576         H         \$82,132           11         \$81,567         I         \$84,596           12         \$83,607         J         \$87,134           13         \$85,695         K         \$89,313           14         \$87,839         L         \$91,545           15         \$90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575           22         \$102,410         Q         \$103,575           23         \$103,454         R         \$106,165           24         \$104,509         R         \$106,165           25         \$105,564         S         \$108,819           26         \$106,631         S         \$108,819           27         \$107,697         S         \$108,819           28         \$109,863         T <t< th=""><th>8</th><th>\$75,009</th><th>F</th><th>\$77,418</th></t<>	8	\$75,009	F	\$77,418
11       \$81,567       I       \$84,596         12       \$83,607       J       \$87,134         13       \$85,695       K       \$89,313         14       \$87,839       L       \$91,545         15       \$90,034       M       \$93,834         16       \$91,835       M       \$93,834         17       \$93,671       N       \$96,180         18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	9	\$77,260	G	\$79,740
12       \$83,607       J       \$87,134         13       \$85,695       K       \$89,313         14       \$87,839       L       \$91,545         15       \$90,034       M       \$93,834         16       \$91,835       M       \$93,834         17       \$93,671       N       \$96,180         18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$108,819         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$109,769       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	10	\$79,576	Н	\$82,132
13       \$85,695       K       \$89,313         14       \$87,839       L       \$91,545         15       \$90,034       M       \$93,834         16       \$91,835       M       \$93,834         17       \$93,671       N       \$96,180         18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$108,819         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$109,755       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	11	\$81,567	I	\$84,596
14       \$87,839       L       \$91,545         15       \$90,034       M       \$93,834         16       \$91,835       M       \$93,834         17       \$93,671       N       \$96,180         18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	12	\$83,607	J	\$87,134
15         \$ 90,034         M         \$93,834           16         \$91,835         M         \$93,834           17         \$93,671         N         \$96,180           18         \$95,545         O         \$98,584           19         \$97,456         P         \$101,049           20         \$99,405         P         \$101,049           21         \$100,896         Q         \$103,575           22         \$102,410         Q         \$103,575           23         \$103,454         R         \$106,165           24         \$104,509         R         \$106,165           25         \$105,564         S         \$108,819           26         \$106,631         S         \$108,819           27         \$107,697         S         \$108,819           28         \$108,775         T         \$110,995           29         \$109,863         T         \$110,995           30         \$110,961         U         \$113,215	13	\$85,695	K	\$89,313
16       \$91,835       M       \$93,834         17       \$93,671       N       \$96,180         18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	14	\$87,839	L	\$91,545
17       \$93,671       N       \$96,180         18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	15	\$ 90,034	M	\$93,834
18       \$95,545       O       \$98,584         19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	16	\$91,835	M	\$93,834
19       \$97,456       P       \$101,049         20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	17	\$93,671	N	\$96,180
20       \$99,405       P       \$101,049         21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	18	\$95,545	0	\$98,584
21       \$100,896       Q       \$103,575         22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	19	\$97,456	Р	\$101,049
22       \$102,410       Q       \$103,575         23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	20	\$99,405	Р	\$101,049
23       \$103,454       R       \$106,165         24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	21	\$100,896	Q	\$103,575
24       \$104,509       R       \$106,165         25       \$105,564       S       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       S       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       S       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	22	\$102,410	Q	\$103,575
25       \$105,564       \$       \$108,819         26       \$106,631       \$       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       \$       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	23	\$103,454	R	\$106,165
26       \$106,631       \$       \$108,819         27       \$107,697       \$       \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215				
27       \$107,697       \$ \$108,819         28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	25	\$105,564		\$108,819
28       \$108,775       T       \$110,995         29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215				·
29       \$109,863       T       \$110,995         30       \$110,961       U       \$113,215	27	\$107,697	S	\$108,819
<b>30</b> \$110,961 U \$113,215				·
<b>31</b> \$112,071 U \$113,215	30	. ,	U	\$113,215
	31	\$112,071	U	\$113,215

	2024-	2025 1% Feb 25	19	2025-2	2026		2026-2027			
05,564			19				2020-2027		2027-2028	
05,564				1% Aug 25 1% Feb 2% Aug 26 1.5% Aug		1.5% Aug 27	1.5% Feb 28			
•	105,564	\$106,620		\$107,686	\$108,763		\$110,938		\$112,602	\$114,291
06,631	\$106,631	\$107,697		\$108,774	\$109,862		\$112,059		\$113,740	\$115,446
07,697	\$107,697	\$108,774		\$109,862	\$110,960		\$113,180		\$114,877	\$116,600
08,775	\$108,775	\$109,863		\$110,961	\$112,071		\$114,312		\$116,027	\$117,768
09,863	\$109,863	\$110,962		\$112,071	\$113,192		\$115,456		\$117,188	\$118,945
10,961	\$110,961	\$112,071		\$113,191	\$114,323		\$116,610		\$118,359	\$120,134
	\$112,071	\$113,192		\$114,324	\$115,467		\$117,776		\$119,543	\$121,336
	\$110	0,961	0,961 \$112,071	0,961 \$112,071	0,961 \$112,071 \$113,191	0,961 \$112,071 \$113,191 \$114,323	0,961 \$112,071 \$113,191 \$114,323	0,961 \$112,071 \$113,191 \$114,323 \$116,610	0,961 \$112,071 \$113,191 \$114,323 \$116,610	0,961 \$112,071 \$113,191 \$114,323 \$116,610 \$118,359

	Traditional Scale 7 (Doctorate)										
	2024	-2025		2025-2026			2026-2027		2027-2028		
		1% Feb 25		1% Aug 25	1% Aug 25 1% Feb 26		2% Aug 26		1.5% Aug 27	1.5% Feb 28	
25	\$115,183	\$116,335		\$117,498	\$118,673		\$121,047		\$122,862	\$124,705	
26	\$116,334	\$117,497		\$118,672	\$119,859		\$122,256		\$124,090	\$125,951	
27	\$117,498	\$118,673		\$119,860	\$121,058		\$123,479		\$125,332	\$127,212	
28	\$118,673	\$119,860		\$121,058	\$122,269		\$124,714		\$126,585	\$128,484	
29	\$119,859	\$121,058		\$122,268	\$123,491		\$125,961		\$127,850	\$129,768	
30	\$121,059	\$122,270		\$123,492	\$124,727		\$127,222		\$129,130	\$131,067	
31	\$122,270	\$123,493		\$124,728	\$125,975		\$128,494		\$130,422	\$132,378	

**Scale 7 Doctorate** 

# TRANSITION

<b>Current Step</b>	Current February 2024	2024-25 Interval	2024-25 Career
2023-2024	Doctorate Salary	Equivalent W/STEP	Ladder Salary Next
			Year Pays 1 - 12
1	\$74,772	F	\$77,418
2	\$75 <i>,</i> 849	F	\$77,418
3	\$76,926	G	\$79,740
4	\$78,123	G	\$79,740
5	\$79,200	Н	\$82,132
6	\$81,677	I	\$84,596
7	\$84 <b>,</b> 535	K	\$89,313
8	\$87 <b>,</b> 495	L	\$91,545
9	\$89,681	M	\$93,834
10	\$91,923	N	\$96,180
11	\$94,221	0	\$98,584
12	\$96 <b>,</b> 577	0	\$98,584
13	\$98,510	Р	\$101,049
14	\$100,478	Q	\$103,575
15	\$102,488	R	\$106,165
16	\$104,537	R	\$106,165
17	\$105,845	S	\$108,819
18	\$107,166	S	\$108,819
19	\$108,507	Т	\$110,995
20	\$109,592	Т	\$110,995
21	\$110,688	U	\$113,215
22	\$111,795	U	\$113,215
23	\$112,913	V	\$115,479
24	\$114,042	V	\$115,479
25	\$115,183	V	\$115,479
26	\$116,334	V	\$115,479
27	\$117,498	V	\$115,479
28	\$118,673	V	\$115,479
29	\$119,859	V	\$115,479
30	\$121,059	V	\$115,479
31	\$122,270	V	\$115,479

**Scale 9 Masters: Related Service Providers** 

Psychologist, School Social Worker, Speech Language Pathologist, Audiologist, Occupational Therapist, Physical Therapist

\*\*\*RSP's on Scale 9 with 60 Credits are to use the Scale 10 chart to find correct placement on the Career Ladder using the 2023-24 Step\*\*\*



Current Step 2023-2024	Current February 2024 Masters Salary	2024-25 Interval Equivalent W/ STEP	2024-25 Career Ladder RSP Salary Next Year Pays 1 - 12
1	\$59,885	A	\$67,465
2	\$61,406	A	\$67,465
3	\$62,924	A	\$67,465
4	\$64,444	A	\$67,465
5	\$65,963	A	\$67,465
6	\$67,339	В	\$69,827
7	\$69,694	С	\$72,270
8	\$72,135	D	\$74, 800
9	\$74,661	Е	\$77,418
10	\$77,272	F	\$79,741
11	\$79,592	G	\$82,132
12	\$81,979	Н	\$84,596
13	\$84,437	I	\$87,134
14	\$86,971	J	\$89,748
15	\$89,581	K	\$91,992
16	\$91,371	L	\$94,291
17	\$93,198	M	\$96,649
18	\$95,063	N	\$99,065
19	\$96,963	N	\$99,065
20	\$98,904	О	\$101,542
21	\$99,892	О	\$101,542
22	\$100,892	P	\$104,080
23	\$101,901	P	\$104,080
24	\$102,920	P	\$104,080
25	\$103,948	Q	\$106,682
26	\$104,728	Q	\$106,682
27	\$105,777	R	\$109,350
28	106,834	R	\$109,350
29	107,902	R	\$109,350
30	108,983	S	\$112,084
31	110,071	S	\$112,084

Scale 10 Masters +30: Related Service Providers
Psychologist, School Social Worker, Speech Language Pathologist,
Audiologist, Occupational Therapist, Physical Therapist



G (G)	G 4 F 1 2024	2024.251	2024.25.6
Current Step	Current February 2024	2024-25 Interval	2024-25 Career Ladder
2023-2024	<b>Masters Salary</b>	Equivalent W/ STEP	RSP Salary Next Year
			Pays 1 - 12
1	64,321	A	\$67,465
2	66,054	В	\$69,827
3	67,786	В	\$69,827
4	69,518	C	\$72,270
5	71,250	D	\$74,800
6	72,825	Е	\$77,418
7	75,009	Е	\$77,418
8	77,260	F	\$79,741
9	79,577	G	\$82,132
10	81,963	Н	\$84,596
11	84,014	I	\$87,134
12	86,115	J	\$89,748
13	88,266	K	\$91,992
14	90,474	L	\$94,291
15	92,735	M	\$96,649
16	94,590	M	\$96,649
17	96,481	N	\$99,065
18	98,412	О	\$101,542
19	100,380	P	\$104,080
20	102,387	P	\$104,080
21	103,922	Q	\$106,682
22	105,483	Q	\$106,682
23	106,557	R	\$109,350
24	107,645	R	\$109,350
25	108,731	S	\$112,084
26	109,830	S	\$112,084
27	110,928	S	\$112,084
28	112,038	Т	\$114,325
29	113,159	T	\$114,325
30	114,290	U	\$116,611
31	115,433	U	\$116,611

Scale 11 Doctorate: : Related Service Providers

Psychologist, School Social Worker, Speech Language Pathologist,

Audiologist, Occupational Therapist, Physical Therapist



		22242	T
Current Step	Current February 2024	2024-25 Interval	2024-25 Career Ladder
2023-2024	<b>Masters Salary</b>	Equivalent W/ STEP	RSP Salary Next Year
		_	Pays 1 - 12
1	\$77,015	F	\$79,741
2	\$78,125	F	\$79,741
3	\$79,234	G	\$82,132
4	\$80,467	G	\$82,132
5	\$81,576	Н	\$84,596
6	\$84,128	I	\$87,134
7	\$87,071	K	\$91,992
8	\$90,119	L	\$94,291
9	\$92,372	M	\$96,649
10	\$94,681	N	\$99,065
11	\$97,048	О	\$101,542
12	\$99,475	О	\$101,542
13	\$101,465	P	\$104,080
14	\$103,492	Q	\$106,682
15	\$105,563	R	\$109,350
16	\$107,673	R	\$109,350
17	\$109,021	S	\$112,084
18	\$110,381	S	\$112,084
19	\$111,763	T	\$114,325
20	\$112,880	T	\$114,325
21	\$114,009	U	\$116,611
22	\$115,148	U	\$116,611
23	\$116,301	V	\$118,943
24	\$117,463	V	\$118,943
25	\$118,638	V	\$118,943
26	\$119,824	V	\$118,943
27	\$121,023	V	\$118,943
28	\$122,233	V	\$118,943
29	\$123,455	V	\$118,943
30	\$124,690	V	\$118,943
31	\$125,938	V	\$118,943

			New	RSP Care	er	Ladder			
	2024	-2025	2025-2026			2026-2027	2027-2028		
		1% Feb 25	1% Aug 25	1% Feb 26		2% Aug 26	1.5% Aug 27	1.5% Feb 28	
Α	\$67,465	\$68,140	\$68,821	\$69,509		\$70,899	\$71,963	\$73,042	
В	\$69,827	\$70,525	\$71,230	\$71,942		\$73,381	\$74,482	\$75,599	
С	\$72,270	\$72,993	\$73,723	\$74,460		\$75,949	\$77,088	\$78,245	
D	\$74,800	\$75,548	\$76,303	\$77,067		\$78,608	\$79,787	\$80,984	
Ε	\$77,418	\$78,192	\$78,974	\$79,764		\$81,359	\$82 <i>,</i> 580	\$83,818	
F	\$79,741	\$80,538	\$81,344	\$82,157		\$83,800	\$85,057	\$86,333	
G	\$82,132	\$82,953	\$83,783	\$84,621		\$86,313	\$87,608	\$88,922	
Н	\$84,596	\$85,442	\$86,296	\$87,159		\$88,903	\$90,236	\$91,590	
-1	\$87,134	\$88,005	\$88,885	\$89,774		\$91,570	\$92,943	\$94,337	
J	\$89,748	\$90,645	\$91,552	\$92,467		\$94,317	\$95,732	\$97,168	
K	\$91,992	\$92,912	\$93,841	\$94,779		\$96,675	\$98,125	\$99,597	
L	\$94,291	\$95,234	\$96,186	\$97,148		\$99,091	\$100,577	\$102,086	
M	\$96,649	\$97,615	\$98,592	\$99,578		\$101,569	\$103,093	\$104,639	
N	\$99,065	\$100,056	\$101,056	\$102,067		\$104,108	\$105,670	\$107,255	
0	\$101,542	\$102,557	\$103,583	\$104,619		\$106,711	\$108,312	\$109,937	
Р	\$104,080	\$105,121	\$106,172	\$107,234		\$109,378	\$111,019	\$112,684	
Q	\$106,682	\$107,749	\$108,826	\$109,915		\$112,113	\$113,795	\$115,501	
R	\$109,350	\$110,444	\$111,548	\$112,663		\$114,917	\$116,640	\$118,390	
S	\$112,084	\$113,205	\$114,337	\$115,480		\$117,790	\$119,557	\$121,350	
Т	\$114,325	\$115,468	\$116,623	\$117,789		\$120,145	\$121,947	\$123,776	
U	\$116,611	\$117,777	\$118,955	\$120,144		\$122,547	\$124,386	\$126,251	
V	\$118,943	\$120,132	\$121,334	\$122,547		\$124,998	\$126,873	\$128,776	

			R	SP Tradition	onal Scale	1	1 (Doctora	ate	e)	
	2024	-2025		2025-	2026		2026-2027		2027-2028	
		1% Feb 25		1% Aug 25	1% Feb 26		2% Aug 26		1.5% Aug 27	1.5% Feb 28
11	\$97,048	\$98,018		\$98,999	\$99,989		\$101,988		\$103,518	\$105,071
12	\$99,475	\$100,470		\$101,474	\$102,489		\$104,539		\$106,107	\$107,699
13	\$101,465	\$102,480		\$103,504	\$104,539		\$106,630		\$108,230	\$109,853
14	\$103,492	\$104,527		\$105,572	\$106,628		\$108,760		\$110,392	\$112,048
15	\$105,563	\$106,619		\$107,685	\$108,762		\$110,937		\$112,601	\$114,290
16	\$107,673	\$108,750		\$109,837	\$110,936		\$113,154		\$114,852	\$116,574
17	\$109,021	\$110,111		\$111,212	\$112,324		\$114,571		\$116,289	\$118,034
18	\$110,381	\$111,485		\$112,600	\$113,726		\$116,000		\$117,740	\$119,506
19	\$111,763	\$112,881		\$114,009	\$115,150		\$117,453		\$119,214	\$121,003
20	\$112,880	\$114,009		\$115,149	\$116,300		\$118,626		\$120,406	\$122,212
21	\$114,009	\$115,149		\$116,301	\$117,464		\$119,813		\$121,610	\$123,434
22	\$115,148	\$116,299		\$117,462	\$118,637		\$121,010		\$122,825	\$124,667
23	\$116,301	\$117,464		\$118,639	\$119,825		\$122,222		\$124,055	\$125,916
24	\$117,463	\$118,638		\$119,824	\$121,022		\$123,443		\$125,294	\$127,174
25	\$118,638	\$119,824		\$121,023	\$122,233		\$124,678		\$126,548	\$128,446
26	\$119,824	\$121,022		\$122,232	\$123,455		\$125,924		\$127,813	\$129,730
27	\$121,023	\$122,233		\$123,456	\$124,690		\$127,184		\$129,092	\$131,028
28	\$122,233	\$123,455		\$124,690	\$125,937		\$128,456		\$130,382	\$132,338
29	\$123,455	\$124,690		\$125,936	\$127,196		\$129,740		\$131,686	\$133,661
30	\$124,690	\$125,937		\$127,196	\$128,468		\$131,038		\$133,003	\$134,998
31	\$125,938	\$127,197		\$128,469	\$129,754		\$132,349		\$134,334	\$136,349

Appendix B – On or before August 1, 2024, CEA and CCPS will meet to finalize the EPED compensations scales.

Extra Pay/Extra Duty					
Longevity Pay Scale					
Elementary School					
	Steps	2020-2021	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-2024
Band Director (7)	1-2-3	\$480	\$480	\$485	\$490
Choral Director (13)	4-5-6	\$639	\$639	\$645	\$651
	7-8-9	\$800	\$800	\$808	\$816
	10 & above	\$958	\$958	\$968	\$978
(Maximum total of 39)					
MESA Sponsor (2 per school)	1-2-3	\$638	\$638	\$644	\$650
Lego Robotics Sponsor (1 per school)	4-5-6	\$882	\$882	\$891	\$900
Math Challenge Sponsor (2 per school)	7-8-9	\$1,120	\$1,120	\$1,131	\$1,142
Other Clubs (4 per school)	10 & above	\$1,418	\$1,418	\$1,432	\$1,446

Extra Pay/Extra Duty					
Longevity Pay Scale					
Middle School					
	Steps	2020-2021	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-2024
(1 per school - Total of 6)	Steps	2020-2021	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-2024
Athletic Director	1-2-3	\$1,601	\$1,601	\$1,617	\$1,633
Atmetic Director				-	
	4-5-6	\$2,239	\$2,239	\$2,261	\$2,284
	7-8-9	\$2,879	\$2,879	\$2,908	\$2,937
	10 & above	\$3,517	\$3,517	\$3,552	\$3,588
(1 per school - Total of 36)					
Baseball					
Basketball - Boys					
Basketball - Girls	1-2-3	\$1,278	\$1,278	\$1,291	\$1,304
Soccer	4-5-6	\$1,760	\$1,760	\$1,778	\$1,796
Softball	7-8-9	\$2,239	\$2,239	\$2,261	\$2,284
Volleyball	10 & above	\$2,719	\$2,719	\$2,746	\$2,773
	1				
(1 per school - Total of 24)					
Track - Boys	1-2-3	\$800	\$800	\$808	\$816
Track - Girls	4-5-6	\$1,278	\$1,278	\$1,291	\$1,304
Cheerleading Sponsor	7-8-9	\$1,760	\$1,760	\$1,778	\$1,796
Pom Pon Sponsor	10 & above	\$2,239	\$2,239	\$2,261	\$2,284
(Maximum total of 78)					
History Fair Coordinator					
(1 per school)					
Math Counts (1 per school)					
MESA Sponsor (2 per school)					
Lego Robotics Sponsor (1 per school) Science Fair Coordinator					
(1 per school)					
Secondary Writing Coach					
(1 per school)					
Student Council (1 per school)	1-2-3	\$638	\$638	\$644	\$650
Yearbook (1 per school)	4-5-6	\$882	\$882	\$891	\$900
Other Clubs (4 per school)	7-8-9	\$1,120	\$1,120	\$1,131	\$1,142
	10 & above	\$1,418	\$1,418	\$1,432	\$1,446
(1 per school - Total of 18)	1-2-3	\$1,202	\$1,202	\$1,214	\$1,226
Band Director	4-5-6	\$1,202	\$1,202	\$1,214	\$1,220
Choral Director	7-8-9	\$1,278	\$1,278	\$1,373	\$1,387
Middle School Drama Production	10 & above	\$1,339	\$1,339	\$1,373	\$1,387

Extra Pay/Extra Duty					
Longevity Pay Scale					
High School					
	Steps	2020-2021	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-2024
(1 per school - Total of 4)	Бієря	2020-2021	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-2024
Activities Director	1-2-3	\$5,756	\$5,756	\$5,814	\$5,872
Tion, mas Broom	4-5-6	\$6,557	\$6,557	\$6,623	\$6,689
	7-8-9	\$7,356	\$7,356	\$7,430	\$7,504
	10 & above	\$8,155	\$8,155	\$8,237	\$8,319
(1 per school - Total of 4)					
Head Football Coach	1-2-3	\$3,838	\$3,838	\$3,876	\$3,915
	4-5-6	\$4,476	\$4,476	\$4,521	\$4,566
	7-8-9	\$5,118	\$5,118	\$5,169	\$5,221
	10 & above	\$5,756	\$5,756	\$5,814	\$5,872
(6 per school - Total of 24)					
Assistant Football	1-2-3	\$2,399	\$2,399	\$2,423	\$2,447
	4-5-6	\$2,879	\$2,879	\$2,908	\$2,937
	7-8-9	\$3,359	\$3,359	\$3,393	\$3,427
	10 & above	\$3,838	\$3,838	\$3,876	\$3,915
(1 per school - Total of 12)					
Head Basketball - Boys	1-2-3	\$3,197	\$3,197	\$3,229	\$3,261
Head Basketball - Girls	4-5-6	\$3,838	\$3,838	\$3,876	\$3,915
Head Wrestling	7-8-9	\$4,476	\$4,476	\$4,521	\$4,566
	10 & above	\$5,118	\$5,118	\$5,169	\$5,221
(2 per school per sport - Total of 24)					
Assistant Basketball - Boys	1-2-3	\$2,239	\$2,239	\$2,261	\$2,284
Assistant Basketball - Girls	4-5-6	\$2,719	\$2,719	\$2,746	\$2,773
Assistant Wrestling	7-8-9	\$3,197	\$3,197	\$3,229	\$3,261
	10 & above	\$3,677	\$3,677	\$3,714	\$3,751
(1 per school per sport - Total of 48)					
Head Baseball					
Head Field Hockey					
Head Lacrosse - Boys & Girls					
Head Soccer - Boys & Girls					
Head Swimming					
Head Softball	1-2-3	\$2,566	\$2,566	\$2,592	\$2,618
Head Tennis	4-5-6	\$3,197	\$3,197	\$3,229	\$3,261
Head Track - Boys & Girls	7-8-9	\$3,838	\$3,838	\$3,876	\$3,915
Head Volleyball	10 & above	\$4,476	\$4,476	\$4,521	\$4,566
(2 per school per sport - Total of 88)					
Assistant Baseball					
Assistant Field Hockey					

Assistant Lacrosse - Boys & Girls					
Assistant Soccer - Boys & Girls					
Assistant Softball	1-2-3	\$1,278	\$1,278	\$1,291	\$1,304
Assistant Tennis	4-5-6	\$1,760	\$1,760	\$1,778	\$1,796
Assistant Track - Boys & Girls	7-8-9	\$2,239	\$2,239	\$2,261	\$2,284
Assistant Volleyball	10 & above	\$2,719	\$2,719	\$2,746	\$2,773
(1 per school - Total of 16)					
Strength Coach - Fall	1-2-3	\$1,278	\$1,278	\$1,291	\$1,304
Strength Coach - Winter	4-5-6	\$1,760	\$1,760	\$1,778	\$1,796
Strength Coach - Spring	7-8-9	\$2,240	\$2,240	\$2,262	\$2,285
Strength Coach - Summer	10 & above	\$2,719	\$2,719	\$2,746	\$2,773
(1 per school per sport - Total of 24)					
Cheerleading - Fall & Winter (1 per school per season)					
Cross Country	1-2-3	\$2,078	\$2,078	\$2,099	\$2,120
Golf	4-5-6	\$2,558	\$2,558	\$2,584	\$2,610
Indoor Track	7-8-9	\$3,038	\$3,038	\$3,068	\$3,099
	10 & above	\$3,517	\$3,517	\$3,552	\$3,588
(Total of 40)					
Assistant Cheerleading - Fall & Winter (2					
per school per season)	1-2-3	\$1,039	\$1,039	\$1,049	\$1,059
Assistant Cross Country (2 per school)	4-5-6	\$1,519	\$1,519	\$1,534	\$1,549
Assistant Indoor Track (2 per school)	7-8-9	\$2,001	\$2,001	\$2,021	\$2,041
Assistant Swimming (2 per school)	10 & above	\$2,479	\$2,479	\$2,504	\$2,529
Marching Band Percussion Instructor (1 per school)					
Marching Band Color Guard Instructor (1 per school)					
(1 per school - Total 4)					
Head Unified Bocce	1-2-3	618	618	\$624	\$630
Head Unified Strength					
Head Unified Tennis					
(1 per school - Total 4)					
Assistant Unified Bocce	1-2-3	412	412	\$416	\$420
Assistant Unified Strength		1.12	1.12	¥ . 2 0	.20
Assistant Unified Tennis					
		•	-		
(1 per school - Total 12)	1-2-3	\$1,278	\$1,278	\$1,291	\$1,304
Pom Pons - Fall & Winter (1 per season)	4-5-6	\$1,760	\$1,760	\$1,778	\$1,796
National Honor Society	7-8-9	\$2,240	\$2,240	\$2,262	\$2,285
	10 & above	\$2,719	\$2,719	\$2,746	\$2,773
(1 per school - Total of 12)	1-2-3	\$3,197	\$3,197	\$3,229	\$3,261
Instrumental and Marching Band Director	4-5-6	\$3,838	\$3,838	\$3,876	\$3,915

Major Drama Production Director	7-8-9	\$4,476	\$4,476	\$4,521	\$4,566
Major Musical Production Director	10 & above	\$5,118	\$5,118	\$5,169	\$5,221
	1	1	<u> </u>	, i	
(1 per school - Total of 8)	1-2-3	\$1,359	\$1,359	\$1,373	\$1,387
Assistant Marching Band Director	4-5-6	\$1,840	\$1,840	\$1,858	\$1,877
Major Drama Production Assistant					
Director	7-8-9	\$2,319	\$2,319	\$2,342	\$2,365
	10 & above	\$2,798	\$2,798	\$2,826	\$2,854
(Total of 3)					
Skills USA (3 at CTA Only)	1-2-3	\$958	\$958	\$968	\$978
	4-5-6	\$1,438	\$1,438	\$1,452	\$1,467
	7-8-9	\$1,920	\$1,920	\$1,939	\$1,958
	10 & above	\$2,399	\$2,399	\$2,423	\$2,447
(1 per school - Total of 8)					
Major Musical Production Assistant					
Director	1-2-3	\$1,920	\$1,920	\$1,939	\$1,958
Student Council	4-5-6	\$2,399	\$2,399	\$2,423	\$2,447
Equity Liaison	7-8-9	\$2,446	\$2,446	\$2,470	\$2,495
	10 & above	\$3,359	\$3,359	\$3,393	\$3,427
(1 per school - Total of 24)					
Freshman Class Sponsor					
Sophomore Class Sponsor					
History Fair Coordinator					
International Thespian Society	1-2-3	\$800	\$800	\$808	\$816
National Art Honor Society	4-5-6	\$1,278	\$1,278	\$1,291	\$1,304
Science Expo Coordinator	7-8-9	\$1,760	\$1,760	\$1,778	\$1,796
	10 & above	\$2,239	\$2,239	\$2,261	\$2,284
(1 per school - Total of 24)					
Gifted and Talented Liaison					
Choral Director					
Yearbook					
Newspaper	1-2-3	\$1,601	\$1,601	\$1,617	\$1,633
Junior Class Sponsor	4-5-6	\$2,239	\$2,239	\$2,261	\$2,284
Senior Class Sponsor	7-8-9	\$2,879	\$2,879	\$2,908	\$2,937
Auditorium Tech Assistant	10 & above	\$3,517	\$3,517	\$3,552	\$3,588
(1 1 1 T 4 1 C 4)					
(1 per school - Total of 4)	1 2 2	\$2.020	\$2.020	\$2.076	\$2.015
Auditorium Tech Supervisor	1-2-3	\$3,838	\$3,838	\$3,876	\$3,915
	4-5-6	\$4,476	\$4,476	\$4,521	\$4,566
	7-8-9	\$5,118	\$5,118	\$5,169	\$5,221
	10 & above	\$5,756	\$5,756	\$5,814	\$5,872
(Maximum total of 56)					
MESA Sponsor (2 per school)					
Service Learning Coordinator					
(1 per school)					

Lego Robotics Sponsor (1 per school)					
Other Clubs (8 per school)	1-2-3	\$638	\$638	\$644	\$650
Jazz Band (1 per school)	4-5-6	\$882	\$882	\$891	\$900
	7-8-9	\$1,120	\$1,120	\$1,131	\$1,142
	10 & above	\$1,418	\$1,418	\$1,432	\$1,446

·, T	Extra Duty					
ngevity I unty-wid	Pay Scale					
uniy-wid	le .					
		Steps	2020-2021	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-2024
	County PLTW Engineering Coordinator	Бира	2020 2021	2021 2022	2022 2023	2023 2024
	(1)	1-2-3	\$1,120	\$1,120	\$1,131	\$1,142
	County Bio-Med Coordinator (1)	4-5-6	\$1,601	\$1,601	\$1,617	\$1,633
	County Computer Science Coordinator		, , , , ,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	7 7 .	, ,
	(1)	7-8-9	\$2,078	\$2,078	\$2,099	\$2,120
	County Criminal Justice Coordinator (1)	10 & above	\$2,558	\$2,558	\$2,584	\$2,610
	County Science Fair Coordinator (1)					
	CASC (1)					
		T		The second second		T
	String Director (5) High School	1-2-3	\$1,359	\$1,359	\$1,373	\$1,387
		4-5-6	\$1,840	\$1,840	\$1,858	\$1,877
		7-8-9	\$2,319	\$2,319	\$2,342	\$2,365
		10 & above	\$2,798	\$2,798	\$2,826	\$2,854
	(2 per High School - Total of 8)	T	<del></del>		1	
	Accreditation for Growth Sponsor					
	*The recipients of these stipends receive					
	their compensation the year prior to	Steps 1 thru	\$1,601	\$1,601	\$1,617	\$1,633
	middle states evaluation.	10+	\$1,001	\$1,001	\$1,017	Φ1,033
	Accreditation for Growth Sponsor					
	*The recipients of these stipends receive	G. 1.1				
	their compensation the semester of the	Steps 1 thru	\$800	\$800	\$808	\$816
	on-site visit.	10+				
_	Technology Coordinator (Grandfathered -	Steps 1 thru				
k oj	Elementary, Middle & High School -	10+	\$2,399	\$2,399	\$2,423	\$2,447
ooc	Before July 1, 2003)					
deł siti	Technology Coordinator (Elementary,	Steps 1 thru	01 457	¢1 457	¢1 472	¢1 407
Gra Po	Middle & High School - After July 1, 2003)	10+	\$1,457	\$1,457	\$1,472	\$1,487
ONLY Gradebook or hnology Position	2003)	Steps 1 thru				
N Se	High School Gradebook Coordinator	10+	\$2,399	\$2,399	\$2,423	\$2,447
ling ONLY Gradeboo Technology Position	The sense of discount contained	Steps 1 thru	Ψ=,577	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	<i>\$2,123</i>	, , ·
din Te	Middle School Gradebook Coordinator	10+	\$1,457	\$1,457	\$1,472	\$1,487
Holding Tec		Steps 1 thru	-		-	
<u> </u>	Elem. School Gradebook Coordinator	10+	\$1,457	\$1,457	\$1,472	\$1,487
pu.	High School Technology & Gradebook	Steps 1 thru	\$3,127	\$3,127	\$3,158	\$3,190
ok a n	Coordinator (After July 1, 2003)	10+	Ψ3,127	Ψ3,127	ψ5,150	75,170
boc tio1	High School Technology & Gradebook	Steps 1 thru	φ <b>2.505</b>	#2.505	<b>#2 622</b>	02.662
ade 'osi	Coordinator (Grandfathered - Before July	10+	\$3,597	\$3,597	\$3,633	\$3,669
Holding BOTH Gradebook and Technology Position	1, 2003)					
LH log	Middle and Elementary School Tech. & Gradebook Coordinator (After July 1,	Steps 1 thru	\$2,187	\$2.187	\$2.200	\$2.221
30. 1110	2003)	10+	\$2,10/	\$2,187	\$2,209	\$2,231
ıg E Teck	Middle and Elementary School Tech. &					
ldir T	Gradebook Coord. (Grandfathered -	Steps 1 thru	\$3,127	\$3,127	\$3,158	\$3,190
0	Before July 1, 2003)	10+	,,	72,12,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	70,170

\*As per memo dated July 2003, the stipend for an employee holding both positions is the larger of the two salaries plus 1/2 of the other.

Longevity Pay Scale					
Other Positions					
Stile Footions					
	Steps	2020-2021	2021-2022	2022-2023	2023-2024
Robotics Coordinator					
Vex First Coordinator	1-10 & above	\$2,060	\$2,060	\$2,081	\$2,102
Music Events Assistant					
Mentor Teacher/PBIS					
	1-10 & above	\$843	\$843	\$851	\$860
Wellness Coordinator					\$860
Online Teacher	1-10 & above	\$7,070	\$7,070	\$7,141	\$7,212
Online Mentor	year	\$606	\$606	\$612	\$618
	semester	\$303	\$303	\$306	\$309
Special Ed Lead Teacher	1-10 & above	\$600	\$600	\$606	\$612
Learning Focus Trainer	1-10 & above	\$1,010	\$1,010	\$1,020	\$1,030

#### Index

Academic freedom	36	Mileage reimbursement	41
Advance sick leave	27	Misconduct in office	16
Air quality	12	Mission	4
Annual leave	33	NBC Professional Leave	33
APC	55, 58	Observation	19
Arbitration	5	Parental Leave	30
Assignment	10	Payroll Deductions	38
Association business	7	Personal leave	32
Bereavement leave	33	Personnel file	20
Bulletin board	7	Planning	11
Classroom Control	37	Prescription Drug	44
Complaint	17	Promotional vacancies	26
Computer	15	Reduction	17
Course reimbursement	52, 58	Reduction in building teacher staffing	17
Dental Benefits	49	Representation	6
Discipline	16	Reprimand	16
Discrimination	17	Sabbatical leave	31
Doctor's certificate	27	School assignment	10
Duration	54	School calendar	9
Duty-free lunch	11	Second class	20
Early dismissal	11	Sick leave	27
Electronic mailboxes	7	Sick leave transfer	28
Employee Assistance Program	50	Storage	15
Evaluation	19	Subpoena	34
Extra Pay for Extra Duty	39	Summer school	40
Family and Medical Leave Act	27	Summer workshops	40
Flexible Spending Accounts	45	Suspension	16
Full time released President	8	Teacher work time	13
Furnishings	15	Telephone	15
Grievance	5	Termination	16
Group Term Life Insurance	50	Transfer	22
Health insurance	44	Transfer-sick leave	28
Home and Hospital Teaching	40	Tuition reimbursement	52
Internship	33	Vacancies	10
Jury duty	32	Vending	15
Leave of absence	35	Vision Care	49
Lesson planning	13	Wellness Program	41
Licensure	55	Work year	11
Life Insurance	50	Workday	11
Mailboxes	7	Worker's compensation	28
Mentors	41		